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FINAL FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, Wong'’s International
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) reported
consolidated revenue of HK$3.8 billion (2014: HK$4.1 billion)
representing a decrease of 7.8% as compared to last financial year.
The Group's consolidated operating profit for the year was HK$227.2
million or 6.0% of revenue as compared to HK$248.2 million or 6.0%
for the previous financial year. The decrease in revenue was mitigated
by a reduction in operating costs, resulting in a moderate drop in
consolidated operating profit.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$598.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2015, as compared to HK$616.6
million for the last financial year. The share of profit from the property
development joint venture for the year amounted to HK$426.0 million,
as compared to HK$430.3 million for the last financial year. The share
of profit in the current year arose mainly from the surpluses from
revaluation of investment properties held for leasing while the share of
profit for the last year was from the sale of office units and car parking
spaces. Basic eamings per share for the year amounted to HK$1.25
(2014: HK$1.29).

DIVIDENDS

The Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.03 (2014: HK$0.04)
per share for 2015. The Directors now recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.045 (2014: HK$0.05) per share on or before
Tuesday, 21 June 2016 to the shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Monday, 6 June 2016.
Payment of such proposed final dividend is subject to approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

4 Wong’s International Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 31
May 2016, the Register of Members of the Company will be closed
on Monday, 30 May 2016 and Tuesday, 31 May 2016. During these
two days, no transfer of shares will be effected. To be eligible to
attend and vote at the meeting, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 27 May 2016.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed on Monday, 6
June 2016 and no transfer of shares will be effected on that date. To
qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 3 June 2016.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Electronic Manufacturing Service Division
(“EMS Division”)

Revenue for the EMS business was maintained at a steady level in
the first six-month of 2015 but tailed off in the rest of the year as a
result of weaker customer demand clouded by the global economic
slowdown and financial market volatility. For the year ended 31
December 2015, the EMS Division reported revenue of HK$3.8 billion,
a decrease of HK$0.3 billion or 7.5% as compared to HK$4.1 billion
for the last financial year. The segment profit attributable to the EMS
Division for the year was HK$230.9 million, representing a decrease
of HK$41.4 million or 15.2% as compared to HK$272.3 million for the
last financial year. The decrease in the segment net profit was
attributable to the decrease in revenue as alleviated by cost control
measures.

IREBREEERAA 2015 Fif 5
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES (continued)

Original Design and Manufacturing Division
(“ODM Division”)

The revenue from iCarte for Apple® iPhone® has shrunk as a result of
the built-in Near Field Communication (NFC) capability in the iPhone® 6.
The sale for the tablets was slow as the market plateaued. However,
the research and development efforts in tablets have provided
technological innovations and opportunities of value added services
to the EMS Division.

Apple and iPhone are trademarks of Apple Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries.
Property Investment Division

The Group has two property development joint ventures with Sun
Hung Kai Properties Limited on two sites for office buildings in Kwun
Tong. The development project at the first site was officially
completed in January 2014 and launched into the market in April
2014 under the name of “One Harbour Square”. Market reception for
the building was favourable and units were sold steadily in 2014.
During 2015, further units and car parking spaces in the building were
sold or leased, resulting in an increase in the equity value of the
property development joint venture, of which the Group’s share was
HK$426.0 million. The increase in the equity value of the joint venture
included the Group’s share of the fair value gain in the investment
properties owned by the joint venture of approximately HK$357.9
million.

The construction work for the second development project is
proceeding as planned and the foundation and diaphragm wall were
completed in February 2015. The site was handed over to the main
contractor to commence the development construction in March
2015. The construction of the second site is targeted to be completed
in 2017. During the year, the Company has obtained approval from a
closely allied group of shareholders for an additional investment of
HK$550.0 million by way of additional loans to be provided by the
Group to the joint venture company, bringing the total investment in
the two property development projects up to HK$1,880.0 million.
Further details were set out in the Company’s announcement dated
24 November 2015 and the circular dated 15 December 2015.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of HK$2,724.0
million of banking facilities. Total bank borrowings were HK$1,012.0
million (2014: HK$1,055.7 million), of which HK$17.9 million was
arranged by an overseas subsidiary. Cash and cash equivalents and
short-term bank deposits were HK$1,026.8 million at 31 December
2015 (2014: HK$912.7 million).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had net cash surplus of
HK$14.8 million, as compared to net bank borrowings of HK$143.0
million at 31 December 2014. The improvement was mainly attributed
to HK$279.4 million funds generated from operations which was
used to finance the property development joint venture of HK$39.9
million and capital investment of HK$47.0 million. Sufficient banking
facilities and bank balances are available to meet the cash needs of
the Group for its manufacturing operations as well as property
development activities.

Net gearing ratio for the Group as at 31 December 2015 is nil (31
December 2014: 6.7%) as the Group was in net cash position as at
31 December 2015. The net gearing ratio was calculated as net debt
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Most of the Group’s sales are conducted in United States dollars and
costs and expenses are mainly in United States dollars, Hong Kong
dollars, Japanese Yen and Chinese Renminbi. Consistent with
prudent policy in financial risk management, the Group does not
engage in any foreign exchange hedging products. The Group
recognizes the currency risk in the devaluation of Chinese Renminbi
and will closely monitor and actively manage the risk involved.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no material change in the Group’s capital structure
since 31 December 2014, which consists of bank borrowings, cash
and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits and equity
attributable to owners of the parent, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

IREBREEERAA 2015 Fif 7
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PLEDGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

Details of the pledges on the Group’s assets are set out in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed approximately 4,300
employees. The Group adopts a remuneration policy which is
commensurate with job nature, qualification and experience of
employees. In addition to the provision of annual bonuses, medical
and life insurances, discretionary bonuses are also rewarded to
employees based on individual performance. The remuneration
packages and policies are reviewed periodically. The Group also
provides in-house and external training programs to its employees.

PROSPECTS

The growth of the global economy in 2015 was modest as the further
deceleration of growth in the key emerging and developing economies
overshadowed a modest recovery in major high-income countries.
This deceleration was accompanied by a decline in commodity
prices, financial market volatility and diminished flows of trade and
capital. Against the backdrop of the uncertain macroeconomic
environment, the global economic outlook in 2016 continues to
present challenges to our EMS business in terms of their impacts on
customer demands, operating expenses and ultimately our
competitiveness. To meet these challenges, the Group is committed
to enhance its competitiveness and profitability through value-added
services, automation and efficiency improvement programmes as well
as stringent cost control initiatives.

Construction for the second property development project is targeted
to be completed in late 2017. As a result of the near completion of
the first property development project, share of profit from the
property development joint venture in 2016 is not expected to be at a
similar level as in 2015. Sufficient funding in the form of committed
bank loans have been arranged to enable the whole project to be
completed. It is the Group’s preference to hold its interest in both
projects for long term and for leasing purposes after taking into
consideration the market conditions and the financing requirements.

8 Wong’s International Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report
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AWARD & RECOGNITION

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wong’s Electronics
Company Limited, have been awarded the Caring Company Logo by
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service since March 2012. In
addition, Wong’s F&B Limited, which is also a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has also been awarded the Caring
Company Logo in March 2016. These serve as recognition of the
Group’s active participation in community activities and good
corporate citizenship.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to extend my sincere
gratitude to our customers, suppliers and business partners for their
continued confidence in and support to the Group. | would also like
to pay a special tribute to all of our employees for their loyal, diligent
and professional services to the Group.

WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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2015 2014 Changes
B 5T BoE ERES ERar il
Note % % % point
EIEEE Operating results
EERMASZ I B 5t Employee benefit expenses to
revenue % 124 1.4 +1.0
Ho g iE fI S S ES B 9t Other operating expenses to
revenue % 5.2 5.2 -
338 )P o Operating profit % 6.0 6.0 -
RN S Net profit % 15.7 15.0 +0.7
S O TR Return on equity % 1 22.7 28.7 -6.0
B REMRR Financial health
BRE i A
FEEHAERSE L Net debts to total equity % 2 Net cash 6.7 N/A
BEREBRERE DL Borrowings to total equity % 3 38.4 49.2 -10.8
—E-HF —FE—@mF -3
2015 2014 Changes
Bt = Financial ratio
AN iE A
MEN R (1) Current ratio (Times) 4 1.4 1.3 N/A
BREE Per share data
B#1.2570  HB¥1.297T
G AT Earnings per share HK$1.25 HK$1.29 -3.1%
5T - Notes:
1. RSB TR R = SFF ek 1. Return on equity % = net profit/total equity
2. FEEHEERA S L=(REX — RekReEED 2. Net debts to total equity % = (total borrowings — total cash and cash equivalents
WRE — RHIRITIE ), kRS — short-term bank deposits)/total equity
3. ERBBERE O = AER s 3. Borrowings to total equity % = total borrowings/total equity
4. RBLR=-ABEE RBEE 4. Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities
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Five-Year Financial Summary

e

restated

—2-nFf —T-QmF —T-=Ff T —ZT—F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

BETR BETT BETT BETTT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ES RESULTS
W5 Revenue 3,800,911 4,124,106 3,718,401 3,342,947 3,017,124
LB R Operating profit 227,203 248,156 115,723 114,857 182,542
K PS5 A 1) Profit before income tax 642,878 670,556 99,611 123,283 208,036
FSfiAX Income tax expense (44,645) (53,961) (20,300) (23,696) (31,385)
kTSR 1B F)E Profit after income tax 598,233 616,595 79,311 99,587 176,651
JEVERR RE S Non-controlling interests = - (1,399) 745 654
RATER AFE(E  Profit attributable to

albe owners of the Company 598,233 616,595 77,912 100,332 177,305
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R E Total assets 4,615,994 4,312,616 3,713,259 2,716,667 2,607,829
BE Total liabilities 1,981,384 2,165,167 2,134,118 1,203,164 1,184,829
BENAATIHES  Equity attributable to

A R owners of the Company 2,634,606 2,147,445 1,579,137 1,514,829 1,423,666
FEFERR S Non-controlling interests 4 4 4 (1,326) (666)
mrEsRasE Total equity and liabilities 4,615,994 4,312,616 3,713,259 2,716,667 2,607,829
MIEE - Note:

T —FMEBECTEY  RMAEERMAEFTBSEIEAZE  Figures for the year 2011 have been restated to reflect the Group’s adoption of HKAS 12
1257 ((E5THR) - [EERE 18 - W ABRAE E ] - (Amendments) — “Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets’”.

12 Wong’s International Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report



EESHRES

Directors’ Report

EFEeREEUREEE-_FT—AF+ A
S+t BLFEZEFEEREERCDERZIES
MBHRE  ZEAVBBRERNEETEREEAY
B EZgER LREESIE -

FEXHK
ARBIRBIERRE - EMB AR 2 T EXBKER
B MEROHETER  UWRMERE -

e

AEEBXAFEZFHERS RS  UWRAEER
TE-RF+ A=+ HEER 2B EARRTI
HNARFERESIEE160EA ©

2 EER

=Py

REENBAAMOMZAEEEXBELNBTH
RERE TS IR RS ©

e

[l

KRB

EXeCERTHRE  BRKEHRE_T -1
F+-A=+T—REFEZRBREWNT

The Directors present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 which were approved by them at the board meeting held on the
date of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a holding company. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are the development, manufacture, marketing and
distribution of electronic products as well as property investment.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year and the state of
affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2015 are set out on pages 53
to 160 of this Annual Report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

A detailed analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit by operating
segments are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have declared an interim dividend and now recommend
a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 as
follows:

BETIT

HK$'000

EFEHRE - AEREK0.037T Interim dividend of HK$0.03 per share paid 14,355
FRREHRE - AEIKRE 3TN B 0.045 7T Proposed final dividend of HK$0.045 per share in issue 21,532
35,887
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group for the year and a discussion on the
Group’s future development and principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group are provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages
4 to 9 of this Annual Report. A discussion of the financial risks and
the management of the risks of Group are provided in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 4 to 9 and the Financial Highlights on pages 10 and 11 of
this Annual Report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to environmental responsibility through
minimizing adverse effects on the community, environment and
natural resources while safeguarding the health and safety of the
public. The Group actively controls and endeavors to reduce
emissions, waste and inefficient use of resources and energy. Health,
safety and the environment are the top priorities in the design of our
products, processes and services. Our manufacturing facilities are
constantly managed and monitored using international environmental
systems.

Relationships with employees

The Group considers that employees are valuable assets of the
Group and is committed to building an amicable and rewarding
relationship with its employees. Employees are remunerated with
salary packages commensurate with their job nature, qualification,
experience and performance. Training is provided to employees to
enhance job performance and progression within the Group. The
Group also works its best to cultivate a harmonious workplace which
enhances employee performance and company-employee
relationship. In addition, the Group strives to provide a safe and
healthy work environment.

Community engagement

The Group takes pride in participating in community events and
volunteer activities as a key component of our commitment to
corporate responsibility. The engagements provide opportunities for
the Group and our employees to contribute in improving local
communities. Such activities include making donations, paying visits
to elderly homes and participating in flag-selling activities etc. Certain
companies in the Group have been awarded the Caring Company
Logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of
their active participation in community activities and good corporate
citizenship.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Relationships with customers and suppliers

The Group strives to be global strategic business partners of our
customers by providing products and services that meet or exceed
our customers’ requirements for quality, reliability and value. In
accomplishing this goal, the Group endeavours to build long-term
and mutually beneficial relationships with our suppliers, which play a
crucial role in providing high quality products and ensuring reliable
delivery to our customers.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

To the best knowledge of the Board of Directors, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group during the year.

Subsequent events

The Group did not have any material events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the financial year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest suppliers and customers are as follows:

VAR
%

RiE%E Purchases
— EAHER — the largest supplier 18
— ARHEREHETE — five largest suppliers combined 39

tHE R Sales

— RARP — the largest customer 27
— AREP&HFEHE — five largest customers combined 71

BEE HBMBATHIRR(GRESHMAEELR
AR 5% PA b ) A E AR B fE 1S E A Lt
HERE, 2 o

No Directors, their associates or shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) were interested at any time during the year in the above
suppliers or customers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five years
are summarised on page 12.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital during the year are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2015,
calculated under the Company’s Bye-laws and the Bermuda laws,
amounted to HK$582,996,000 (2014: HK$582,948,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights upon the issue of shares which are
imposed by the Company’s Bye-laws or Bermuda laws.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in book values of property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

JOINT PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Details of the properties held for joint development with Sun Hung Kai
Properties Limited are set out in the paragraph “Review of business
activities — property investment division” under the Chairman’s
Statement.

16 Wong’s International Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report



ESEHRES

Directors’ Report

B

AEEBRAFEZEREREMHERRRAES
7B H£64,000 7T ©

=2

AEERBEAREERRZARAEER

HITES

FARKEE
(EEARITHAREL)

TEHRLT

BRrERE

BRI E

ARk B S A4
(R-_F—RFf+—H-1TLAEZE)

BAMFHTES

BREE L - GBS OBE * AF#it

BEAIEL 0 aBM - AT @+

BEXBEE  AT@t

REMEE
(R-ZF—AF+—H-+AHEZT)

BIBARR 2 ARMANE 1120 K - TERKREE
MSHRABLIERNEERRAFAT FEEFE
BT REBEERREKIBLERNTFRNEZTE
EE HETEAREBEARRZABMAES K
B - 2BETESTHFAER  THENER
RERRAFAS FERET -

BEBIIFNTESHRBEEES - HARER
REAZ ARG ARRIRRBF KRG L&
BEERIEIENMESE -

EECRIBBUFNTESREFTAHAR
SHBERAB (B &R MR EHR
A EIBGRRHEBYUMBLFEERE - &
FERMBEMFMTESREL -

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group for charitable and other purposes
during the year amounted to HK$64,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada
Mr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel
Mr. Wan Man Keung
Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund
(appointed on 25 November 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OBE, JP

Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBM, JP

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, Jp

Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David
(appointed on 25 November 2015)

In accordance with Bye-law 112(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Wong Chung Mat, Ben and Dr. Yu Sun Say will retire from the Board
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu,
David and Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund who were appointed as
Directors during the year will also retire pursuant to Bye-law 95 of the
Company’s Bye-laws. All the retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The existing Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are not appointed for a specific term but is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of the Bye-laws of the
Company.

The Board has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors the annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and considers them as independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben, aged 64, joined the Group in 1975. He
has been a Director of the Company since June 1990. In February
2003, he was appointed Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. Wong is the Chairman of the Administrative Committee
of the Company and a director of various other companies of the
Group. He is also a director of W. S. Wong & Sons Company Limited
and Salop Investment Limited, both of which are substantial
shareholders of the Company. He obtained a Master of Science
degree in Operations Research from Ohio State University and has
over 41 years’ experience in the electronics industry. He was an
independent non-executive director of Elegance Optical International
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Elegance International Holdings
Limited) (retired on 29 August 2013). Mr. Wong is the brother of both
Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny and Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael, who
are substantial shareholders of the Company, and the father of Ms.
Wong Yin Man, Ada.

Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, aged 38, joined the Group in 2002 and
was appointed Director of the Company in October 2005. She is also
a member of the Administrative Committee of the Company and a
director of certain other companies of the Group. She is responsible
for Central Sourcing and Supply Management and oversees other
departments of the Group as well. She obtained a Bachelor degree in
Industrial Engineering and a Master of Science in Engineering
Management from University of Southern California. Ms. Wong is the
daughter of Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben and a niece of both Mr. Wong
Chung Ah, Johnny and Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael, who are
substantial shareholders of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel, aged 67, joined the Group in 1985.
He has been a Director of the Company since June 1990. He is also
a member of the Administrative Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He was formerly the Group’s Financial
Controller. In July 2007, he ceased to be the Group’s Financial
Controller and became a financial adviser of the Group. He is also a
director of certain other companies of the Group. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
obtained a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences and a Master of Arts
degree in China Development Studies from the University of Hong
Kong. Before joining the Group, he had approximately 10 years’
experience with a major international firm of accountants. He was a
non-executive director of Focus Media Network Limited (resigned on
10 November 2015).

Mr. Wan Man Keung, aged 64, first joined the Group in January
1988. After leaving the Group for about 14 months, he rejoined the
Group in June 1993. In January 2004, he was appointed as a Director
of the Company. He is also a member of the Administrative
Committee of the Company and a director of certain other companies
of the Group. Mr. Wan is responsible for sales and marketing and
overall business development of the Group. He obtained a Bachelor
degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Hong Kong
and has over 40 years of experience in the electronics manufacturing
industry.

Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund, aged 61, joined the Group in April
1992 and subsequently promoted to Senior Vice President — Sales
and Marketing in January 2012. He was appointed Director of the
Company in November 2015. Mr. Hung is currently a director of
certain other companies of the Group. He has over 38 years of
working experience in the electronics manufacturing industry and now
has the overall responsibility of serving a portfolio of customers at
Wong’s Electronics Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. Prior to joining the Group, he held various managerial
positions in manufacturing, planning, sales & marketing departments
in multinational and listed companies. Mr. Hung obtained a Diploma
in Industrial Engineering from the Hong Kong Baptist University and a
Master degree in Business Administration from the City University of
Macau.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OBE, JP, LLD, DSocSc, BA, FCPA (Practising),
FCA, FCPA (Aust), FCIS, FAIA (Hon), CGA (Hon), Hon HKAT, RFP (Hon), aged 62,
joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive Director in
April 1999. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Dr. Li is the senior partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants and an independent non-executive
director of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited,
Transport International Holdings Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited,
China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited (formerly known
as China Resources Enterprise, Limited), RoadShow Holdings Limited
and Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. Dr. Li was an independent
non-executive director of Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. (retired
on 25 June 2013). Dr. Li is presently a member of The 12th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
He was a former member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong,
former chairman of its Public Accounts Committee, past president of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and former
adviser to the Ministry of Finance on international accounting
standards of the People’s Republic of China.

Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBM, JP, aged 77, joined the Company as an
Independent Non-executive Director in October 1999. He is also the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Dr. Yu is the chairman of the H.K.I.
Group of Companies and a director of a number of manufacturing
and investment companies. He is an independent non-executive
director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited and Tongda Group
Holdings Limited. Dr. Yu had served as a member of the Standing
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and the Preparatory Committee for the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region acting as its Hong Kong affairs adviser. He is
currently a member of the Standing Committee of the Chinese
General Chamber of Commerce and permanent honorary president
of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, Jr, aged 77, joined the Company as an
Independent Non-executive Director in September 2004. He is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of
the Company. He is presently a consultant at K.C. Ho & Fong,
Solicitors and Notaries. Mr. Yap is a former president of The Law
Society of Hong Kong and The Law Association for Asia and the
Pacific (LAWASIA). He is also a former Hong Kong Affairs Adviser. Mr.
Yap has served on various public and community organizations and
his latest was as a member of the Town Planning Board, which term
was completed at the end of March 2010. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of eSun Holdings Limited and
Hung Hing Printing Group Limited.

Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David, aged 65, joined the Company as an
Independent Non-executive Director in November 2015. He is a
chartered engineer and a member of The Institution of Engineering
and Technology, United Kingdom. He possesses 39 years of
extensive experience in technology transfer, technical management in
research and development as well as strategic business development
for high-tech companies. Mr. Cheung was a former member of the
ICT R&D Centre Technology Review Panel of the Hong Kong Applied
Science and Technology Research Institute (ASTRI). He obtained a
Master of Engineering from McMaster University, Canada, a Master of
Science in Engineering from the University of Hong Kong and a
Master of Business Administration from the University of East Asia,
Macau.

Senior Management

Mr. Chan Tin Lun, Byron, aged 48, joined the Group in January
1997 and subsequently promoted to Senior Vice President — Sales
and Marketing in July 2012. He is currently responsible for the
Company’s business development in USA. Mr. Chan is also a director
of Wong'’s International USA Corporation, a subsidiary of the
Company engaged in the development of the Company’s original
design and manufacturing business in the North America market. He
has more than 26 years of experience in the field of electronics
manufacturing. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan has worked in
various leading international manufacturing companies in USA. Mr.
Chan holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering
from the University of Colorado, Boulder.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Lam Sek Sung, Patrick, aged 58, joined the Group in 1985. In
May 2007 and April 2009, he was appointed the Group’s Chief
Financial Officer and Director of the Company, respectively. In
September 2010, he resigned from the Company but remains serving
in the U.S. Office of the Group that engages in the development of
the original design and manufacturing business in the North America
market. Mr. Lam is currently a director of certain companies of the
Group. Prior to his appointment as the Group’s Chief Financial
Officer, Mr. Lam has held various senior management positions within
the Group with a depth of financial and operation experiences. Mr.
Lam earned a Bachelor degree in Accounting and a Master degree in
Information Science from Golden Gate University.

Mr. Lee Kam Tong, aged 55, joined the Group in July 2013 as Vice
President of Corporate Finance. He is currently a director of certain
companies of the Group. Mr. Lee holds a Master of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He is also an associate member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants of England and the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. Mr. Lee has over 29 years of experience in
financial management and internal control with listed companies,
commercial entities and an international audit firm.

Mr. Tan Chang On, Lawrence, aged 66, joined the Group in 1986
and, in February 2003, he was appointed Director of the Company. In
July 2014, he resigned as Director of the Company but remains
serving in the U.S. Office of the Group and oversees the marketing
and sales of electronic products in the North America and overseas
markets. Mr. Tan is also a director of certain companies of the Group.
He graduated from Ohio University with a BSEE in 1972 and then
went to University of Michigan at Ann Arbor and got his MSEE in
1974. After graduation, he joined a major corporation in the United
States for about 12 years before joining the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior Management (continued)

Ms. Wong Kit Yee, Kitty, aged 42, joined the Group in August 2007
and is currently Executive Assistant to the Chairman and Assistant
Vice President of the Group. She is responsible for overseeing
Administration in Corporate Office in Hong Kong, Food & Beverage of
the Group and is also responsible for formulating and implementing
strategies and business plans for the development of the Group’s
property leasing and management. Ms. Wong is also a director of
certain companies of the Group. Ms. Wong accumulated extensive
experience in various functions of office management. She obtained a
Bachelor degree of Business Administration from the Open University
of Hong Kong.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

Personal information of Director
Mr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel, Executive Director of the Company,

resigned as non-executive director of Focus Media Network Limited
on 10 November 2015.
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BB EHRBE13.51B(1) IREH UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
EEER(E) UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES (continued)

EEME Directors’ emoluments

THITESE 2 ERHS 2% - MBI IEE  There were 2% increment to the basic salary of the following

TEENZEZ2EEWMES FHA7.7% - MEHYHN Executive Directors and 7.7% increment to the Director’s fee entitled

—E-RE-A—H4ER: by each Independent Non-executive Director, both with effect from 1
January 2016:

RHBRTEE RAEFE

EXFHe EEHS
Adjusted Adjusted
annual annual
basic salary Director’s fee
BT BT
HK$ HK$
HITES Executive Directors
TEHZL Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 1,871,649
fRTEE & Mr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 696,612
BRI A Mr. Wan Man Keung 2,378,714
gEoK B A Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 1,325,220
BUkHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
FREEL Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 140,000
SHEAELT Dr. Yu Sun Say 140,000
EXELE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 140,000
sREEE Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David 140,000

RAAFBEEERNEHE_ZT—HF+_HA=+—H The total amount of emoluments of each Director of the Company for
IFEENM e aES N EE B HREAN:zE10- the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:

REQNTRGD ZHE Long positions in shares of the Company
HE 2 81T
RGBS
ELEREE  Approximate
Number of percentage
EEHA 54 ordinary of the
Name of Directors Capacity shares issued shares
F AR EmiA ARZEGE® 2w ()
Wong Chung Mat, Ben Beneficial owner and interest of controlled
corporation (Note) 134,140,911 28.03%
TEH Emlia A
Wong Yin Man, Ada Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.21%
PR 5 BEmEAA
Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel Beneficial owner 1,837,500 0.38%
i R 98 Emlia A
Wan Man Keung Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.21%
il BEmEAA
Yu Sun Say Beneficial owner 500,000 0.10%
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EERFETRAEZER (B)

RAEXR R 2R (&)
GEX

TR EWR A (RIRFEHF L AE KM KA A7 134,140,911
BB F R EER - ZERNDBBATHHRE -

(@ 1,000,000 A& A& 19 8 £ BFREEEASEE ©

(b) 133,140,911 &% {5 B Salop Investment Limited & 4 +
ZARAIRTAREEZERA RITH -
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company (continued)

Note:

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested in
134,140,911 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the following capacity:

(@) 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben personally.

(b) 133,140,911 shares were held by Salop Investment Limited, which was wholly
owned and controlled by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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FTERRzHED

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

BEAATESERTETHAERA  W=-ZF—F So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of the
F4+—_A=+—H THAT(EAFES=E%EE Company, as at 31 December 2015, persons (other than the
TRAEBRIN RARTIRMSIEER DT A/A  Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
SN EA R ERAIEIBC KR ESF 248 short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as

MAZEZIORBT

recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

RAEABRGDZ2HAE Long positions in shares of the Company
HEERT
REBDH
EERYE Approximate
Number of percentage
TERRER A & ordinary of the
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity shares issued shares
BaAA 1)
Salop Investment Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 133,140,911 27.83%
TERXTFAERRA BalAa A (fi2)
W. S. Wong & Sons Company Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 94,052,019 19.66%
ERAA  HARR  XEHEE  BE R EET
Raisyid Z I (B3t 3)
Wong Chung Yin, Michael Beneficial owner, joint interest, interest of controlled
corporation and founder of a discretionary trust (Note 3) 78,133,172 16.33%
BHEA A (H:E3(0)
Levy Investment Limited Beneficial owner (Note 3(c)) 45,820,212 9.58%
TR BRAA  EBERREZEETAMA (T4)
Wong Chung Ah, Johnny Beneficial owner, interest of spouse and
founder of a discretionary trust (Note 4) 44,179,487 9.23%
BaEAA (i)
Kong King International Limited Beneficial owner (Note 4(c)) 41,944,487 8.77%
EEINGEL)
Mountainview International Limited Trustee (Note 4(c)) 41,944,487 8.77%
57EA (Hi7E5)
HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee (Note 5) 63,544,883 13.28%
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FERRzER (R)

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

RAEXR R 2HFR (&)

BT

1. Salop Investment Limited 2 — M A T A cE2EHRAE 1.
RSl AR - FELH [EERFETHRABR 2 ER] —
BRI -

2. FTERRXFERAR A — A ERRKEIEH 2 AF 2.

3. IRRAEEBRER(REFLF RPEHEMN)RALF 3
78,133 172 RIS B M aw o ZERMIEBBIAT HN
A

a) 3,934,000 A& A&7 A £ BALSEAEBAREAS -

(b) 10,794,000 B B9 i F A Se 4 B H 32 T tA 5 AR
ZLTHRERAE -

(© 45,820,212 f% % 15 H Levy Investment Limited £
B Mz A AT EREEEEHA RITH -

(d 17,584,960 % B% 3 B Levy Pacific Limited 18 % —
B2EGTEEE MIBRLLEREA(REE
FREEKD) ZEE 28 % A HSBC
International Trustee Limited Rl &{=7E A ° £ B HE
%% 4} HSBC International Trustee Limited & & #
RAFER 117,584,960 R Z ik - F2
BTN MizES@) ©

4. TARBEERREBE(REZEFRPERN) REAQF] 4
44,179,487 IRIR D R 5B - ZZERMBBIATHH
ESR I

@) 1,000,000 BB 19 i ARG R EEARES -

(0) 1,235,000 kiR TR EZEFERZA LT
BA -

(©) 41,944,487 1% B% 15 A Kong King International
Limited IR15 —TH 2 (S35 A » TG EH
BR(BEBEZEHFRBERN) ZELEHA -
HSBC International Trustee Limited 8 & 1S 3E A °
Kong King International Limited F§ Mountainview
International Limited 2 & # & + Mz 2 & 8l &
HSBC International Trustee Limited & & # A& £
B St & -~ Kong King International Limited
Mountainview International Limited &2 HSBC
International Trustee Limited & B #1823 A R —
#t 41,944,487 e i 1 2 #E 2 - B2 BT XM EE
5(b) °
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Notes:

Long positions in shares of the Company (continued)

Salop Investment Limited was a company wholly owned and controlled by Mr.
Wong Chung Mat, Ben. Please refer to the Note under the section headed
“Interests of directors and chief executives”.

W. S. Wong & Sons Company Limited was a company controlled by the Wong’s
family.

Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested
in 78,133,172 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the following
capacity:

a) 3,934,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael personally.

(b) 10,794,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael and his
wife, Ms. Woo Sin Ming, jointly.

(c) 45,820,212 shares were held by Levy Investment Limited, which was
wholly owned and controlled by Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael.

(d) 17,584,960 shares were held by Levy Pacific Limited under a discretionary
trust, of which Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael was regarded as the founder
(by virtue of the SFO) and HSBC International Trustee Limited was the
trustee. Each of Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael and HSBC International
Trustee Limited was deemed to be interested in the same block of
17,584,960 shares. Please refer to Note 5(a) below.

Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested
in 44,179,487 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the following
capacity:

(@) 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny personally.

(b) 1,235,000 shares were held by Ms. Luk Kit Ching, wife of Mr. Wong
Chung Ah, Johnny.

() 41,944,487 shares were held by Kong King International Limited under a
discretionary trust, of which Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny was regarded
as the founder (by virtue of the SFO) and HSBC International Trustee
Limited was the trustee. Kong King International Limited was wholly
owned by Mountainview International Limited, which was wholly owned by
HSBC International Trustee Limited. Each of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny,
Kong King International Limited, Mountainview International Limited and
HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed to be interested in the
same block of 41,944,487 shares. Please refer to Note 5(b) below.
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5. HSBC International Trustee Limited #7154 (1R #5757 M 28
1G] A AT 63,544,883 IRIRD P HE B %R o 2 FA%
DEBATHHFEAE -

(@) 17,584,960 % % 15 A Levy Pacific Limited 1 #& —
B2 EE7E A MHSBC International Trustee
Limited &z {555 2 f57EA © 5528 EXMIEE3(d) »

(b) 41,944,487 % f% 17 1 Kong King International
Limited 1R % — 18 2 # {5 5t ¥ B -~ MHSBC
International Trustee Limited &% 55t Z{E5EA °
E2B X 4(0) »

(© 4,015,436 5% B% {5 Hi Sycamore Assets Limited 1R #
—IB2H{Z5E# 8 © MHSBC International Trustee
Limited A% {7t Z55EA ©

BEEEN RZFT—RF+-_A=1+—8"
EEW AAMBEMEMATRARB I K AARE
Bt o B 7R AL SR TN R8 75 S HA 1R 1) 56 336 15 AR
EEFZCHEMAZEEIAR -
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company (continued)

Notes: (continued)

5. HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 63,544,883 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the
following capacity:

(@) 17,584,960 shares were held by Levy Pacific Limited under a discretionary
trust, of which HSBC International Trustee Limited was the trustee. Please
refer to Note 3(d) above.

(b) 41,944,487 shares were held by Kong King International Limited under a
discretionary trust, of which HSBC International Trustee Limited was the
trustee. Please refer to Note 4(c) above.

(c) 4,015,436 shares were held by Sycamore Assets Limited under a
discretionary trust, of which HSBC International Trustee Limited was the
trustee.

Save as disclosed, the Directors are not aware of any other persons
who, as at 31 December 2015, had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS
The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on

2 June 2010. No option has been granted under the Scheme since
its adoption date and up to 31 December 2015.
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SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the Scheme disclosed in accordance with the Listing
Rules is as follows:

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognize and acknowledge
participants who have contributed or will contribute to the
Group.

2. Participants

The participants are Directors of the Company (including
Executive, Non-executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors) and full time or part time employees of any member
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

3. Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not
exceed 20% of the issued shares of the Company from time to
time.

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to any participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) under the Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the Company,
unless approved by shareholders.

5. Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Board to each grantee at the time of making an
offer, and in any event such period of time shall not expire later
than 10 years from the date of grant.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report



EEEHEE

Directors’ Report

BRESTESE (&)

6. E%HJXI*EE?T{EEU /,\?IﬁE’JE'%_L/HH EE

BREEE
BB ERRREITEA
RHIRVARF -

SITERBBREES - hERE
R A BRER

7. BEABREAXNZEHARMNRR

RENBERE  ARARARNREZORMEA
HREA 21 HAXMAEBIOTTARA - £
RENBEZRE -

8. EETHEEEXE
TEEEHEFSERBIBERE - HEREM

BATIBERTIZE&EHE

(@ BRORKREAH(BAREER) R
R HRERMARZWHE

b)) EONRERRHBHASEZEAR
B PrE A RERARZ FHRTIE
&

(© MKfpmE-
9. =ETEZAXH
EZquil BRE —F—

TENA— B (B
?‘Tfﬁ_xﬁ(

Y
m

) IE10F HiR 4

SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

6.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its sole discretion,
there is a minimum period of 1 year for which an option must
be held after its date of grant before such an option can be
exercised.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and
the payment period

To accept the grant of an option, HK$10 as consideration for
the grant of an option must be paid by the grantee to the
Company within 21 days from the date on which an offer letter
is delivered to the grantee.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price determined by the Board
in its absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less than
the higher of:

(@  the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant which must be a business day;

(b)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of
the grant; and

(c)  the nominal value of the shares.

Life of the Scheme

The Scheme shall remain in force for 10 years commencing on
2 June 2010 up to and including 1 June 2020.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option scheme, at no time during the year was
the Company, its subsidiaries, its associated corporations, or its
specified undertaking a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares or
underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company, its associated
corporations or any other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Company during
the year, save for the share option scheme which subsisted at the
year end.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 7
to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Where any transaction mentioned in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements constitutes a connected transaction, the
disclosure and approval requirements, if any, under the Listing Rules
have been complied with.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had,
whether directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

There is no service contract, which is not determinable by the
Company or its subsidiaries within 1 year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation), with any Director
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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PERMITTED DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND
INSURANCE

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that every Director or other
officer of the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the
time being shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur
in or about the execution of the duties of his office, to the extent
permitted by the laws.

The Company has also taken out and maintained Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for certain legal actions that may be brought
against its Directors and officers.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules, as at 31 December 2015, the loans advanced to Bollardbay
Limited and Talent Chain Investments Limited, the joint venture
companies of the Group, amounted to HK$1,252 million, which
amount exceeds 8% of the total assets of the Group as at 31
December 2015. The advances are unsecured and interest-free. The
advances were made during the financial years ended 31 December
from 2008 to 2015.

The summarised financial information of the joint venture companies
are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, on 24 November 2015 and 15 December 2015, the
Company issued an announcement and a circular respectively in
relation to the provision of additional financial assistance to Talent
Chain Investments Limited which constituted a major transaction for
the Company under the Listing Rules. Further details were set out in
the announcement and circular.

GROUP BORROWINGS AND
INTEREST CAPITALISED

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year or on demand are
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. Bank
loans and other borrowings repayable within a period of more than
1 year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices of the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this Directors’ Report, the Company believes that the number
of shares of the Company which are in the hands of the public is
above the relevant prescribed minimum percentage.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasize a quality Board, sound internal
control, transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

In the opinion of the Directors, during the year ended 31 December
2015, the Company has complied with the code provisions under the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), except that (a) the positions of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are occupied by the same person, which deviates
from code provision A.2.1; (b) none of the existing Independent Non-
executive Directors is appointed for a specific term but every Director
is now subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company under Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws
of the Company, which deviates from code provision A.4.1; (c) the
Company does not have the present intention to establish a
Nomination Committee in view that the Board itself shall discharge all
duties expected to be dealt with by a Nomination Committee, which
deviates from code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4.

During the year of 2015, the Board had reviewed and, if required,
made necessary changes to the corporate governance practices of
the Company in order to ensure continued compliance with the CG
Code. Details are disclosed in this Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE

The Board has a schedule of matters reserved for its approval.
Pursuant to the schedule, the Board is mainly responsible for
formulating corporate strategies, approving business plans and
supervising the Company’s financial and management performance.
Matters which may be discussed in Board meetings include the
formulation of the Group’s strategies and policies; approval of
significant business, management and financial matters, annual
budgets, major acquisitions, disposals and capital commitments;
approval of matters relating to the Company’s constitution and share
capital, and change of board members and auditors; establishment of
board committees; review of corporate governance and the
maintenance of a sound internal control system.

The Company has established an Administrative Committee which
has all the general powers delegated by the Board to deal with
administration and daily operation of the Company save as those
matters set out in the schedule of matters reserved to the Board
mentioned above. The Administrative Committee currently comprises
four Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(Chairman of the Administrative Committee), Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada,
Mr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel and Mr. Wan Man Keung.

The Administrative Committee also delegates specific tasks to the
management, which includes the preparation of accounts;
implementation of strategies and policies approved by the Board;
day-to-day monitoring of budgets; implementation of specific
business and work projects; implementation of corporate governance
and internal control procedures and other compliance matters.
Management presents reports to the Administrative Committee for its
review and guidance whenever necessary.

During the year, on 25 November 2015, Mr. Hung Wing Shun,
Edmund and Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David were appointed as
additional Executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director, respectively. The Board currently comprises five Executive
Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors. The
biographical details of the Directors (including relationships among
the members of the Board) are set out on pages 18 to 21 of this
Annual Report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board held four regular Board meetings in 2015 at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the overall strategy, operation, financial
performance, corporate governance practices, risk management and
internal control systems, Directors’ remuneration and appointment of
additional Directors.

The attendance of the Directors at the four regular Board meetings

BERXSZEEHFERWOT : and the 2015 annual general meeting of the Company was as follows:
EEEgeR BREXE
HER H g
Attendance at Attendance at
Board meetings  general meeting
BITES Executive Directors
FREE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben 4/4 11
(EEFITEAAZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
FEHLL Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 4/4 11
BRFEESEA Mr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 4/4 1/1
BRI LA Mr. Wan Man Keung 4/4 11
BEK B4 & Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 0/0 0/0
(R=ZF—HF (appointed on 25 November 2015)
+—A-+HAEZ(F)
BAFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
TREBLT Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 4/4 1/
R i Dr. Yu Sun Say 4/4 11
EXELEE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 4/4 11
SRR A Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David 0/0 0/0
(R=ZFE—FHEF (appointed on 25 November 2015)
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Save as mentioned above, the Chairman held a separate meeting
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with the Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence
of Executive Directors during the year.

Before holding of a Board meeting, the Board is supplied with all
necessary information to enable it to consider the matters to be
discussed. A formal agenda is followed in all Board meetings. All
business transacted at the Board meetings is documented in the
minutes of such meeting. Some Board decisions are made by way of
written resolutions of all Directors. All Board members have access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary. If necessary,
Directors also have access to external professional advice at the
expense of the Company.

IREBREEERAA 2015 Fif 37



TEEBRRES
Corporate Governance Report

EEEI

AARHBMAAEFSRBEILEE  UEE
TEHGE(ERLTAREE L MRRRE - &
AATBAEENBREBEBEIRRREE
L

BUEFHERAARRREER T -—RFAE
Rz 28k - ARSIz AT

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as
Directors of a listed company. The Company introduces and
recommends relevant training courses and reading materials to the
Directors from time to time.

Each of the Directors has provided to the Company a record of
training received during the year of 2015. The means of such training
are as follows:

EINAR Means of Training
HITES Executive Directors
TARFREAE BEM Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben reading materials

(EEFITHAEE,) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Bt BEM R Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada reading materials
PR EES A MEME Mr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel reading materials
R 58 S A& BEM R Mr. Wan Man Keung reading materials
AEIK S & BhHERER Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund induction training/

(R=—ZF—AF HEM R (appointed on 25 November 2015) reading materials

T—AZ+HEAEZE)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric training courses/
forums/study groups/
seminars/talks/
briefings/

reading materials

BYKEHITES
ERFEE L =[RS
g B
Hale, EEE,S
ke, HEM R
BERAEELT 1R A2
ERELE e, EES
BB K
REREL FAELE,
(R=ZF—HAHF BEM E

T—HAZ+HAEZE)

Dr. Yu Sun Say
Mr. Alfred Donald Yap

Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David
(appointed on 25 November 2015)

training course
forums/talk/
reading materials
induction training/
reading materials
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Group’s Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and has occupied these two positions since
February 2003. In allowing the two positions to be occupied by the
same person, the Company has considered the following:

(@ Both positions require in-depth knowledge and considerable
experience of the Group’s business. Candidates with the
suitable knowledge, experience and leadership are difficult to
find both within and outside the Group. If either of the positions
is occupied by an unqualified person, the Group’s performance
could be gravely compromised.

(b)  The Company believes that the supervision of the Board and its
Independent Non-executive Directors can provide an effective
check and balance mechanism and ensures that the interests
of the shareholders are adequately represented.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company is satisfied that its Independent Non-executive
Directors comprise a good mix of industrial, technology, financial and
legal expertise to advise the Board and the management team on
strategy formulation and other financial or regulatory requirements.
Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has provided an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors as
independent.

None of the existing Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company is appointed for a specific term. However, every Director of
the Company is now subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company under Bye-law 112 of
the Bye-laws of the Company. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in the
CG Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee which
comprises two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Yu
Sun Say (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Alfred
Donald Yap, and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Chan Tsze Wah,
Gabriel.

Pursuant to the CG Code, an advisory model has been adopted by
the Remuneration Committee under which the Remuneration
Committee shall perform an advisory role to the Board, with the
Board retaining the final authority to approve Executive Directors’ and
senior management’s remuneration. The principal responsibilities of
the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations on
the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration, reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives, and making recommendations on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review and consider the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management.

The attendance of the Remuneration Committee members at this
meeting was as follows:

HE=E
Attendance
BAFHTESE Independent Non-executive Directors
BRAE LT (EE) Dr. Yu Sun Say (Chairman) 11
BXESRE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 1/1
HITES Executive Director
PR FEE ST A Mr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 11

RRBZFHHBERIIRLY R ENERFEN
ZME AT S| - B8 KRB R BRI ER AR E
X% EF M IRBERESHEAMBNLZ
REREN  RERAARZBE - KRB ZH
R R BT S {EIRE R

The Company’s remuneration policy is to establish and maintain an
appropriate and competitive level of remuneration to attract, retain
and motivate employees to run the Group successfully. The
emoluments of Directors are based on the anticipated time and effort
required from each Director, duties and responsibilities with the
Company, the Company’s remuneration policy and market
benchmark.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have the present intention to establish a
Nomination Committee in view that the Board itself shall discharge all
duties expected to be dealt with by a Nomination Committee.

In addition, the Policy and Procedure for Nomination of Directors have
been set out in writing and adopted by the Board to serve as a
guideline in order to ensure that there is a formal, considered and
transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors with
suitable experience and capabilities to maintain and improve the
competitiveness of the Company. According to the Policy, where a
need is identified and arises for the appointment of a new Director to
the Board, a list of potential candidates should be complied based on
recommendations from existing Board members, management team,
other individuals who know the candidates and, if it deems
appropriate, a professional search firm. The Board shall conduct an
initial evaluation of the potential candidates based on the character,
integrity, commitment, knowledge and ability, accomplishment in his
own field, professional or personal reputation, particular experience or
expertise relevant to the current needs of the Board, and in case of a
new Independent Director candidate, whether he would be
considered as independent. Adequate consideration should also be
given to the diversity perspectives under the Board Diversity Policy.
The Board shall then select and recommend one or more candidates
for interview. Lastly, the best available candidate shall be
recommended for consideration by the Board as a whole.

IREBREEERAA 2015 Fif 41



TREERRES

Corporate Governance Report

REEE (R

REBEE-ZT—AF+_A=+—HILEFERN &
EECHAERENEEF RN TEFSEH -
REMKEBEK  TEBHRNERREFAE LR
BARRZ ARMBIERE ZEREEFFZER -
RAFERITZEAEFEEET WAREH
REBEREZEH ZMAEEGEZ ZHEXN
T

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has approved
the appointment of additional Directors, reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board and considered the eligibility of those
retiring Directors to be re-elected at the annual general meeting
pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company. Amongst the four Board
meetings held during the year, two were related to matters
concerning nomination of Directors. The attendance of the Directors
at these two Board meetings was as follows:

HER
Attendance

HITESE Executive Directors
FAEREAE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben 2/2

(EEFHITIAEF,) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Bt Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 2/2
PR F 2 ST A Mr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 2/2
R 58 o A4 Mr. Wan Man Keung 2/2
AE K IS A Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 0/0

(R-ZZF—AF+—HA=+HHEZE) (appointed on 25 November 2015)

BYHHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

PREBLT Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 2/2

BEAE L Dr. Yu Sun Say 2/2

BREEE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/2

REBIE Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David 0/0
(RZFE—AFf—HAZ+HHEZE) (appointed on 25 November 2015)

EEEgRESZ L BOARD DIVERSITY

ARBIRAEFENBZ Tz WARES
BNEFEXBANBRAESTE 2RI NS

The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board and
believes that a balanced Board composition will contribute towards

ARBZKY - BERY  EFECRNEFTS
REZ LK - ZRREE EXARRRES
Z IR fF— GBI -

the performance of the Board and success of the Company. In view
of this, a Board Diversity Policy has been adopted by the Board. Such
Policy should be read in conjunction with the Policy and Procedure
for Nomination of Directors mentioned above.
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BOARD DIVERSITY (continued)

The Board Diversity Policy provides that, in designing the Board’s
composition, Board diversity shall be considered from a number of
aspects in supporting the attainment of the strategic objectives and
sustainable development of the Company. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The Board will also
take into account factors based on its own business model and
specific needs. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the prospective candidate will bring to the Board.

In respect of the appointment of two additional Directors during the
year of 2015, diversity on the Board has been taken into
consideration. The appointment was made with a view to ensuring an
effective Board which possesses all necessary skills and knowledge
to add value to the Board and the Company for further development
in future. The Board considers that considerable diversity exists in the
existing Board of the Company in terms of its broad experience,
knowledge and personal background. The Company shall continue to
maintain its Board diversity and, when there is any vacancy to fill, to
promote the specific objective of gender and age diversity without
compromising the quality of the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

A Terms of Reference has been adopted for the purpose of setting
out the corporate governance duties to be performed by the Board,
including (but not limited to) development of the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations on changes and updating, review of the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has conducted

an annual review of the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Company.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group and reviewing its
effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit
Department conducts regular internal reviews of the Group’s internal
control system covering the financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions. The Compliance
Committee which comprises the executives of the Group meets
regularly to review the findings and opinions of internal audits
conducted by the Internal Audit Department and makes relevant
recommendations. The executives from the Compliance Committee
will also ensure the control weaknesses are effectively communicated
to the relevant departments and monitor the follow-up actions in
response to its recommendations. The Internal Audit Department will
also report their findings and advice to the Audit Committee which
oversees the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system.

The purpose of the Group’s internal control system is to provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operational system in order to achieve the Group’s objectives. For the
year of 2015, the Board has not identified any critical internal control
weaknesses. The Audit Committee is satisfied that there is an
ongoing process in place for identifying, evaluating and managing the
significant risks faced by the Group.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration paid or
payable to the external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out
as follows:

R (B TT)

Amount (HK$)

ZER Audit services 2,660,000
IEZERTE Non-audit services

— RiEE B LB ARS — tax compliance and consultancy services 521,000

3,181,000
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Dr. Yu Sun Say and Mr. Alfred Donald Yap.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the oversight of
the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, review of the Group’s financial information and review of
the relationship with the auditors of the Company. After the year end
of 2015, amendments were made to the Terms of Reference of the
Audit Committee in order to align the recent changes to the CG Code
in relation to risk management and internal control.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee met
separately with the external auditors twice and held three meetings to
review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and to discuss the auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters including a review of the 2014 final results and 2015 interim
results of the Group.

The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the three
meetings was as follows:

HER
Attendance

BAFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
EREBL(EE) Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (Chairman) 3/3
BEAE LT Dr. Yu Sun Say 3/3
EXELEE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 3/3

EENRREMAMBHRR2EE

FRESIZEMREASEGAMBREAZR
ETERAFRESOREE2H 2 B ZHEDH
ERR

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 50 to 52 of this Annual
Report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interest and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each

substantial issue.
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In addition, shareholders are protected by the following procedures
as governed by the Company’s Bye-laws, the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 and applicable legislation and regulation.

Procedures for shareholder(s) to convene a special
general meeting (“SGM?”)

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth (1/10) of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
sent to the Company’s registered office at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its principal
office at 17/F, C-Bons International Center, No. 108 Wai Yip
Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Company Secretary of the Company, to require a SGM to
be called by the Board of Directors for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the general
meeting, signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more of those shareholders.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board of Directors to convene a SGM by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the
registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is
invalid, the shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as
requested.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholder(s) to convene a special
general meeting (“SGM”) (continued)

4. The notice period to be given to all the registered shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the shareholder(s)
concerned at a SGM varies according to the nature of the
proposal, as follows:

(i) at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes a special resolution of the Company, which
cannot be amended other than to a mere clerical
amendment to correct a patent error; and

(i) atleast fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten (10)
clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to make proposals at
general meeting other than a proposal of a person for
election as director

1. The Company holds an annual general meeting (“AGM”) every
year, and may hold a general meeting known as a special
general meeting whenever necessary.

2. Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-
twentieth (1/20) of the total voting rights of all shareholders
having the right to vote at the general meeting; or (i) not less
than 100 shareholders, can submit a written request stating the
resolution intended to be moved at the AGM; or a statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
a particular general meeting.

3.  The written request/statements must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concern and deposited at the Company’s
registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda and its principal office at 17/F, C-Bons
International Center, No. 108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company
Secretary of the Company, not less than six (6) weeks before
the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution and not less than one (1) week before the general
meeting in the case of any other requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to make proposals at
general meeting other than a proposal of a person for
election as director (continued)

4. If the written request is in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board of Directors of the Company (i) to include the
resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the
statement for the general meeting, provided that the
shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum of money
reasonably determined by the Board of Directors sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition is invalid or the shareholder(s) concerned have
failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s
expenses for the said purposes, the shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed
resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM; or the
statement will not be circulated for the general meeting.

A separate document containing the procedures for a shareholder to
propose a person for election as a director is also published on the
website of the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the
Board of Directors by shareholders

There are no provisions in the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 or in
the Bye-laws of the Company that provide for a procedure by which
shareholder(s) may put forward an enquiry to the Board of Directors
of the Company. A shareholder may, of course, at any time send their
enquiries in writing to the Board of Directors of the Company at the
following address or via the following facsimile number or email
address:
Address: 17/F, C-Bons International Center,

No. 108 Wai Yip Street,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Company Secretary or
Chairman of the Board)

Fax: (852) 2797 8076

Email: enquiry@wih.com.hk
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company in the year of 2015. The current Bye-laws of the Company
is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

By order of the Board

HO YUEN FAN ACIS, ACS
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WONG’S INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wong’s
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 53 to 160, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

| BERUKESIEIESR
BEPIRATFAEH 2
FE: +852 2289 8888
www.pwchk.com

{E&: +852 2810 9888

i PricewaterhouseCoopers

22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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ZEE N EE AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

EPNETERERMOEZEZEESEER  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

KELER  WEBHEE(—AN—FEAFE) financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion

FOOIRERMBERERSE - BRIt ZINRERERIME  solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the

HEMBER BT EHAREDRNAAEMEM  Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do

AT E FSREEMET - not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

RMDIEEES ST ASBMHEEEEER We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards

WITEZ - ZEEAERRMEBETEERE - ¥ on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

HEIRRTER  UWAEBETEAMBERRES  Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical

TNMEEEAEAE R o requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

EALHE R BMITIZF AR A B %S E,  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
SHELWEERNEZERE - FIETEMIZFHECL  about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
PIZBEME T - B IR L AR EFeitEsRm&E  statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
BUGRA M REFEE AEMREMAER - Z£5F  judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
(L2 ERkRE - I EEHEZATHEEL4GASET  misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
BERBRLAELEEE M AT A =R RS A A 2R3 4 - to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
ARt EENEZET BEEMNIIEAY ATA  considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
s ARNEREER c BT BIETEESE  consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
it et ENAEERERMNEHE5TA  order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
SN - ANFTHBES A M HRRAEED|SH A - circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

MM E > RPMESNEIZ/EE LT B We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
AR MREZE RIRHER - appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

(et
i3
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=R OPINION

HIRE  ZEEEUBHREDBIEE BB In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and

LEAEEMA M RE SAFIRHENE AT far view of the financial position of the Company and of its

R-ZE—RE+-_A=T+—HWEBRTEKEE subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial

HEZALILFENUBEERRSRE W&  performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance

BEBCR RGO TEIRTE L AR o with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EOERKBETENEAT PricewaterhouseCoopers
HEDEED Certified Public Accountants
B ZE—R"F=-HA=+=H Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE—_T—AFE+-H=+—HI¥/Z Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

—E-HF —E-NF
2015 2014
B 5E BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
U &= Revenue 5 3,800,911 4,124,106
HAtn i A Other income 6 9,408 12,026
SRS REE 2 #E Changes in inventories of finished goods and
work in progress 24,071 4,539
FIrfs A 2 TR R R E FE Raw materials and consumables used (2,916,261) (3,171,069)
BEREMMAXL Employee benefit expenses 7 (470,878) (469,388)
e REET Depreciation and amortisation charges 8 (43,237) (36,487)
HAbg &= Other operating expenses 8 (197,054) 214,171)
KEMERARBEEZS) Change in fair value of investment properties 16 694 1,810
EfblUhzs, (E48) — 3F%  Other gains/(losses) — net 9 19,549 (3,210)
EIE R Operating profit 227,203 248,156
BERA Finance income 11 8,662 12,875
ELEZ9 9N Finance costs 11 (18,997) (20,795)
EiEE e tEAE Share of profit of joint ventures 19 426,010 430,320
BR Fr 18 %4 B A Profit before income tax 642,878 670,556
PSR X2 Income tax expense 12 (44,645) (53,961)
BRErEH & FE Profit after income tax 598,233 616,595
RATEE AELFE Profit attributable to owners
of the Company 598,233 616,595
IEERER Non-controlling interests = -
598,233 616,595
AATEEAEBEEE Earnings per share attributable to owners
BRER of the Company during the year
FRREREF Basic earnings per share 14 HK$1.25 HK$1.29
BREERT Diluted earnings per share 14 HK$1.25 HK$1.29

FEB60E160 B 2 X A6 MMk 2 AR ED

7 e

The notes on pages 60 to 160 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE—T—AF+=-A=+—HILF/Z Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

—E-IF —E-mE
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEM®  Profitfortheyear 598,233 616,695
Hib2mEKA : Other comprehensive income:
AREHSEEERZER Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
AMtHESREEAABMEES Change in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets (7,730) 12,975
EFo Rk ZHEE Impairment for available-for-sale financial assets
SREERE reclassified to income statement 1,230 -
AftHESREEHERE Reclassification of investment revaluation reserve
KEEHREBEETSE on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets (6,458) -
BB A RS RS 1508 X AR Reclassification of translation reserve upon
EHOME liquidation of subsidiaries 13,533 -
BE¥HmEERE Currency translation differences (73,368) (30,161)
FEHMWEZEER  SNH Other comprehensive loss for the year,
77777777777777777777777777777777777777 netoftax (72,793) (17,186)
FEZEMKRALLE Total comprehensive income for the year 525,440 599,409
Mg - Attributable to:
KARHEA A Owners of the Company 525,440 599,409
VAR e Non-controlling interests = -
FEZEWALLE Total comprehensive income for the year 525,440 599,409

FE0E160 B 2 Mt AZEAMBmEA 248K E The notes on pages 60 to 160 are an integral part of these
e consolidated financial statements.

N
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Posntlon

RZF—AFF+ZA=+—H Asat37 December 2015

—E-hF — PO
2015 2014
B 5E BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BE ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
VI - BB KR Property, plant and equipment 15 280,237 286,357
B E Investment properties 16 27,471 27,920
FHE 4 b & 4 b {58 F Leasehold land and land use rights 17 19,367 21,111
’u‘% ERAINIRE Investments in associates 18 = -
BEPENER Interests in joint ventures 19 2,098,576 1,632,633
B EE Intangible assets 20 - -
—H HESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 22 68 41,315
RICFTISHEE Deferred income tax assets 23 10,727 7,558
A1 M E b i UL AR SR Deposits and other receivables 26 1,920 3,337
ZRHIR e Restricted cash 29 3,560 3,763
2,441,926 2,023,994
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 24 366,365 399,009
FEWE 5 BRFX Trade receivables 25 695,439 894,537
TEfIFRIE ~ BT R HAL Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
JEU R K 26 63,738 62,682
AItHESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 22 12,915 -
JE U Bt & N B FUR Amounts due from associates 27 6 30
ER R eE e %R Current income tax recoverable 8,809 1,470
BEELEERHERE Non-current assets held for sale 28 - 18,203
RHARITIE K Short-term bank deposits 29 218,823 257,048
RNENRREEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 29 807,973 655,643
2,174,068 2,288,622
nEE Total assets 4,615,994 4,312,616
e EQUITY
BEANAATEEAZRER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
[N Share capital 34 47,848 47,848
HAth Other reserves 35 523,904 579,028
REB&F Retained earnings 35
— BRAR S — Proposed dividend 21,532 23,924
— Hftb — Others 2,041,322 1,496,645
2,634,606 2,147,445
R RE Non-controlling interests 35 4 4
R Total equity 2,634,610 2,147,449
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZFE—AF+ZA=+—H Asat37 December 2075

—E-HF —E—OF
2015 2014
B 5T BET T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
=L LIABILITIES
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
PTHESRTAE Derivative financial instrument 30 731 774
REFAEHRAR Deferred income tax liabilities 23 655 757
B3 Borrowings 33 420,000 420,000
777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 421,386 421,531
REEE Current liabilities
FERTE FRRK Trade payables 31 657,280 795,117
JEETE R L EMENIRR Accruals and other payables 32 276,613 274,709
EHFSHAaRE Current income tax liabilities 34,111 38,097
B Borrowings 33 591,994 635,713
777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 1,559,998 1,743,636
wem Total liabilites 1,981,384 2,165,167
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 4,615,994 4,312,616

RABMBEHMERON _ZE—NFE=ZA_-+=HZ% The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
EEGHERISETIE - YR THESERKXEEZ:  forissue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2016 and are signed
on its behalf by:

T AR ITEBH WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN WONG YIN MAN, ADA
FEFITHEY EF Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director

FOO0E160 B 2T AREEAME®REZHK  The notes on pages 60 to 160 are an integral part of these
&y o consolidated financial statements.
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Eqmty

HE—_T—AFE+-H=+—HI¥/Z Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

/NG 2N A
Attributable to owners of the Company
PhEN B0 (E Hin e FEE M= st
Non-
Share Share Other controlling
capital premium reserves interests Total
(HiE34) GEXS) (H3E35) (WiE35)
(Note 34) (Note 35) (Note 35) (Note 35)
BETIT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MZE—WF—H—H Asat1January 2014 47,848 153,025 1,378,264 4 1,579,141
2HEHKA Comprehensive income
FEME  Proftfortheyear - - 616,595 - 616,595
HthZ2mEWA Other comprehensive
income
AHHESREE Change in fair value of
ARELEE-E)) avallable-for-sale financial
assets - - 12,975 - 12,975
ERnEEE Currency translation
differences - - (30,161) - (30,161)
ARZEBRAR Total other comprehiensive loss - - (17,186) - (17,186)
zEUARE Total comprehensive income R - 509409 - 599,409
BBEEAZRS Transactions with owners
BRAATES A2 S Dividend paid to owners of the
Company - - (31,101) - (31,101)
BRBAZZSEE  Total transactions with owners - - (31,101) - (31,101)
N-ZE—NE As at 31 December 2014
+=-A=+—H 47,848 153,025 1,946,572 4 2,147,449
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-T—AF+=H=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

KOS AEL
Attributable to owners of the Company
S RAEE Hivfife FERER H
Non-
Share Share Other controlling
capital premium reserves interests Total
(Hzrs4) (&£ 35) (H&E35) (H&E35)
(Note 34) (Note 35) (Note 35) (Note 35)
BETT BRI BRI BRI BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
RZE-145-A—H As at 1 January 2015 47,848 153,025 1,946,572 4 2,147,449
2EHA Comprehensive income
FEME  Poftforthe year - - 508,233 - 508,233
H2ERA Other comprehensive income
IERESREE Change in fair value of
MEBEY available-for-sale financial assets - - (7,730) - (7,730)
EFPEENER 4 Impairment for available-for-sale
HESBEERNE financial assets reclassified to
income statement - - 1,230 - 1,230
HEESHEELERE  Reclassification of investment
REBMREENIE revaluation reserve on disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets - - (6,458) - (6,458)
WBARERBEELEE  Reclassiication of translation reserve
ENNE upon liquidation of subsidiaries - - 13,533 - 13,533
ERBEZES Currency translation differences - - (73,368) - (73,368)
RZEBRRR Tote ofher comprehensieeloss - - (72799 - (72793)
PEMALE Total comprehensive income - - 525,440 - 525,440
BREAZRS Transactions with owners
BRADRIEBEAZRE Dividend paid to owners of the
Company - - (38,279) - (38,279)
BREEALR 5B Total transactions with owners - - (38,279) - (38,279)
R-ZZ-1%+=-A=+-H Asat31December2015 47,848 153,025 2,433,733 4 2,634,610

%602 160 2 [ 3 Bskdn & B 5 30 55 2 40 A 25

N

5 e

The notes on pages 60 to 160 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-_T—AF+-HA=+—HIFF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

“E-hF —T-F
2015 2014
BisE BETT BT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
EETHHREHERE Cash flows from operating activities
BEEANRS TR Net cash generated from operations 36(a) 356,423 235,457
EREEFIER Hong Kong profits tax paid (31,246) (3,547)
EREIMNER Overseas tax paid (31,730) (29,918)
BAEFEHRN Hong Kong profits tax refund 1,444 4,565
BINRFUR K Overseas tax refund 3,459 3,209
BRI Interest paid (18,997) (20,795)
EETHELNALTE Net cash generated from operating activities
279,353 188,971
RETBHHERERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEAYE  BELRSE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (46,952) (43,178)
HERSELNEEEMSZIATFE  Net proceeds from disposal of assets held for sales 6,525 -
HEME  MERBEFRSZHIE  Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 36(b) 1,011 1,472
HEREMENBHEFE Net proceeds from disposal of an investment property - 74,063
HEMHHELREENSHIE  Net proceeds from disposal of
pEiks available-for-sale financial assets 22,101 -
JE U BsE & A B FUR R Decrease in amounts due from associates 1,390 28
RERITERUR A/ (38 hn) Decrease/(increase) in short-term bank deposits 25,370 (130,464)
TRERERL /(Em) Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash - (3,763)
ERTEERE Loans to joint ventures (39,933) (58,497)
EUFE Interest received 8,662 12,875
RETBFMANESTEE Net cash used in investing activities (21,826) (147 464)
METBHAERERE Cash flows from financing activities
EEMBRITERY) (Decrease)/increase in trust receipt bank loans — net
S hFER (39,058) 112,881
ERTER New bank loans 40,000 -
BEFITER Repayment of bank loans (44,669) (126,900)
ERERE Dividends paid (38,279) (31,101)
MEETHRANREEE Net cash used in financing activities (82,006) (45,120)
RERBELEY 2,/ (M) Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash
ek | equivalents 175,521 (3,613)
FIzBERALEEN Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year
655,643 674,609
ERmEEE Currency translation differences (23,191) (15,353)
FRZBESRASEEY Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 29 807,973 655,643

FE0E160 B 2 Mzt Bz A MB|MAR 2K S  The notes on pages 60 to 160 are an integral part of these

AN

77 ° consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Wong’s International Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wong'’s International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the development, manufacture, marketing and distribution of
electronics products as well as property investment.

The Company is an exempted limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its registered office
and principal place of business are Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and 17/F, C-Bons
International Center, No.108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 23 March 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”). They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss
and investment properties, which are carried at fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following amendments are mandatory for
the financial year beginning 1 January 2015.

Amendments to HKAS 19, “Employee
benefits: defined benefit plans —
employee contributions”

The amendments introduce a relief to reduce
the complexity of accounting for certain
contributions from employees or third parties
under defined benefit plans. When the
contributions are eligible for the practical
expedient provided by the amendments, a
company is allowed to recognise the
contributions as a reduction of the service
cost in the period in which the related service
is rendered, instead of including them in
calculating the defined benefit obligation. The
amendments did not have significant impact
on the Group financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(@)

62 Wong’s International Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

Annual improvements to HFRSs 2010-
2012 cycle and 2011-2013 cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements
contain amendments to nine standards with
consequential amendments to other
standards. Among them, HKAS 24, Related
party disclosures has been amended to
expand the definition of a “related party” to
include a management entity that provides
key management personnel services to the
reporting entity, and to require the disclosure
of the amounts incurred for obtaining the key
management personnel services provided by
the management entity. These amendments
did not have significant impact on the Group
financial statements.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9,
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation during the financial year, as a result,
there are changes to the presentation and the
disclosures of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.
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2 FESHBERMEGE) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
21 RBEHXE(HF) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
211 S BERESHRFE (&) 2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

€ FEETERl - BETR R ZE () New standards, amendments and

DB R ZE—RF interpretations have been issued but are not

—A—BRBZHHRFEER effective for the financial year beginning

8 AR AR BRI IR o 1 January 2015 and have not been early

adopted.
MUT ARz %
Rz EEBREN
Effective
for annual periods
beginning on
or after
BERGHERE 15 (BETR) WEEaE —E-X"F-A—H
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
BEREGTEBE 16 RE 38R (BETR) MERBE B EZER —Z-X"¥-A—H
HKAS 16 and 38 (Amendment) Classification of acceptable methods of depreciation 1 January 2016
and amortisation
ARG EUZ 16 REMN R BITR) B EEMEY —E-X"¥—-A—H
HKAS 16 and 41 (Amendment) Agriculture: bearer plants 1 January 2016
BB GTERE 27 % (1BETIR) BUHBRE A —Z-X"¥-A—H
HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity method in separate financial statements 1 January 2016
ERRMBRELENE R SWMIA —T-\¥—-A—H
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
ERMBREENFE 10K RESGER REFEHEBENAHGEREEANEELREITA *E
£ 285 (571 hR)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment) Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and To be determined
its associate or joint venture
BRNBRELNE 105 - BB BRSELES REER  BAGZAHIN —T-"%¥-A—H
F12FREB G ERE 285 (BEThR)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (Amendment)  Investment entities: applying the consolidation exception 1 January 2016
ERMBREENE 115 (BETR) Wi e EXBER 2 AR —E-X"F-A—H
HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for acquisition of interest in joint operations 1 January 2016
BERUBRERRE 145 E i —Z-X"¥-A—H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 January 2016
ERMBRELERFE 1655 BP &M —E-\¥—-A—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
FEHEER U —E-FT-NFEHFERE —E-X"¥-A—H
Annual Improvements Project Annual improvements 2012-2014 cycle 1 January 2016
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December 2015.

(a)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. |dentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated
impairment loss. See note 2.8 for the impairment of
non-financial assets including goodwill.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share
of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in the income
statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Associates (continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associates are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor.
The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in
joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When
the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

IREBREEERAA 2015 Fif 67



e M HRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FESHEEBEGE)

2.2 RE (&)

2.3

24

68

(c)

i)

okk

e

B ()

il

H

PN

H
JiE]

ES AEDERGZARE
BRRGERAEENAEDENE
SEH o FRIFRZIEHDERE
EREZEE  TAREREBRE
MELEHE -  ERARERERA
BREZEFBOR - BREAE
BT RAE 2 -

BER &

REDHMIBmAEREERRERHA

B

FEZ—BAAER - AEEER

THEREAENRELEDHMERK
AR KRR AAFL T ERRTE
MEBLERRE(ETELERE

E]) e
SN
(a) DEREHRE®R

AEBEZERYBHERMIIAR
N ERERREEHMEER
REREFAE® ((eE%])
A BAMBRRALRFZ
WERAEBEZ 2REHEED
B-

Wong’s International Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(c)

Joint arrangements (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

2.3 Segment reporting

24

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Group’s senior executive
management, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, is
considered as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(“CODM”) that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses including
those relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the income statement
within “other gains/(losses) — net”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security, and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes
in the carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation difference on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-
sale are included in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that report;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

@iy all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity.
When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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Construction-in-progress represents buildings under
construction and machinery under installation and is
stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction of
buildings and interest charges arising from borrowings
used to finance these assets during the period of
construction or installation and testing, if any. No provision
for depreciation is made on construction-in-progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use. When the assets concermned are brought
into use, the costs are transferred to other property, plant
and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the
policy as stated below.

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other
property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Al
other repairs and maintenance are charged in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation on
leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
on other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified
as finance lease

Shorter of remaining lease
term or useful life
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 to 40 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 5to 7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5to 7 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised, in the consolidated income statement.

Leasehold land and land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land and
land use rights are accounted for as operating leases.
They are recognised in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the periods of the
lease or the land use rights, or when there is impairment,
the impairment is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Investment properties

Investment property principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
companies in the Group.

Investment property comprises land held under operating
leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held
under operating leases are accounted for as investment
properties when the rest of the definition of an investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases
concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment property is carried at fair value, representing
open market value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers at least annually. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If this information is not available, the
external valuers use alternative valuation methods such as
recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. Changes in fair values are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement during the period in
which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9
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Investment properties (continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in equity
as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment under
HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures and non-financial
assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Non-current assets held-for-sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. The non-current assets (except for certain
assets as explained below), are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries
and associates) and investment properties, even if held
for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(@)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.
These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and other receivables’, ‘amount due
from associates’, ‘cash and cash equivalents’
and ‘' short-term bank deposits’ in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to dispose
of the investment within twelve months of the
end of the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are presented in the
consolidated income statement within other gains-
net, in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost
of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. The translation differences
on monetary securities are recognised in profit or
loss; translation differences on non-monetary
securities are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Changes in the fair value of monetary and
non-monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of other
income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognising
the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative is designed as a hedging instrument, and if so,
the nature of the item being hedged.

Since the derivative instruments entered into by the Group
do not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in the fair
value of these derivative instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement within
“other gains/(losses) — net”.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

2.18 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.20 Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due, in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are
given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies on
behalf of subsidiaries or associates to secure loans,
overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was
given. The fair value of a financial guarantee at the time of
signature is zero because all guarantees are agreed on
arm’s length terms and the value of the premium agreed
corresponds to the value of the guarantee obligation. No
receivable for the future premiums is recognised.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the
initial amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the guarantee. These estimates
are determined based on experience of similar
transactions and history of past losses, supplemented by
the judgement of management. The fee income earned is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the
guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to
guarantees is reported in the consolidated income
statement within other operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
subsidiaries or associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the company.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Inside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

QOutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only when
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group
the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is
not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.23 Employee benefits

C)

Pension obligations

Group companies participate in general defined
contribution pension schemes. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrued to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more
than twelve months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to present value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans due
wholly within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities
as described below. The amount of revenue is not
considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue is recognised as follows:

(@) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and
collectibility of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.

(b) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(c)

(d)

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease periods.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

2.26 Leases

(a)

(b)

As a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

As a lessor

When assets are leased out under an operating
lease, the asset is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position based on the nature
of the asset. Lease income is recognised over the
term of the lease on a straight-line basis.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

(@) Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures. The Group’s
foreign currency assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally denominated in
Chinese renminbi (“RMB”), United States
dollars (“US$”) and Japanese yen (“JPY”).
These currencies are not the functional
currencies of the group entities to which these
balances related. Foreign exchange risk
mainly arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments denominated in RMB,
USD and JPY.

The Group mitigates this risk by maintaining
HK$, US$, JPY and RMB bank accounts
which are used by the Group to pay for the
transactions denominated in these currencies.

The Group has certain investments in
Mainland China, whose net assets are
denominated in RMB. The conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the rules
and regulations to the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Mainland China
government.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

M

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2015, if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against USD
with all other variables held constant, profit
before tax for the year would have been
HK$24,537,000 (2014 by 5%:
HK$15,357,000) higher/lower, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of USD-denominated trade
receivables and payables, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

At 31 December 2015, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against RMB with all
other variables held constant, profit before tax
for the year would have been HK$8,000 (2014
by 5%: higher/lower HK$5,825,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of RMB-
denominated trade receivables and payables,
short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents.

At 31 December 2015, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 10% against JPY with all
other variables held constant, profit before tax
for the year would have been HK$1,261,000
(2014 by 10%: HK$2,081,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of JPY-denominated
trade payables, cash and cash equivalents
and bank borrowings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Cash flow interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets except for certain bank
deposits, the Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2015, if interest rate on
bank borrowings had been 1% higher/lower
with all variables held constant, profit before
tax for the year would have been
HK$10,120,000 (2014: HK$10,557,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate bank
borrowing.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and
bank deposits as well as credit exposures to
customers such as trade receivables, loans to joint
ventures, deposits and other receivables. The credit
risk on cash and bank deposits is limited because
the Group mainly places the deposits in banks with
high credit rating and management does not expect
any losses from non-performance by these banks.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the
unfavourable economic conditions and the lower
liquidity situation which could in turn impact their
ability to repay the amounts owned. Deteriorating
operating conditions for debtors may also have an
impact on management’s cash flow forecasts and
assessment of the impairment of receivables. To the
extent that information is available, management
has properly reflected revised estimates of expected
future cash flows in their impairment assessments.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The
Group usually requires customers to settle the
balances with normal credit terms of 30 to 90 days.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group has a
concentration of credit risk given that the top five
(2014: five) customers account for 74% (2014:
71%) of the Group’s total year end trade receivable
balance. Management considers that the credit risk
in respect of these customers is minimal after
considering the financial position and past
experience with these customers. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and other
receivables falls within the recorded allowances and
the Directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible accounts receivable has
been made.

Management considers the credit risk on loans to
joint ventures is minimal after considering the
financial conditions of these entities. Management
has performed assessment over the recoverability
of these balances and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these
companies.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of available
credit facilities. The Directors aim to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines available.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements, its compliance with lending covenants
and its relationship with its bankers to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily
realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, based on
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay. Balances due within twelve months
equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Specifically, for mortgage loan which contains a
repayment on demand clause that can be exercised
at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis shows the
cash outflow based on the earliest period in which
the entity can be required to pay, that is if the
lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to
call the loans with immediate effect. The maturity
analysis for other bank borrowings is prepared
based on the scheduled repayment dates.
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3 HEEREKRERE(E) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.1 B¥EKEZE(E) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) HEBELEARE) (c) Liquidity risk (continued)
=
Maturity Analysis

RERE 158 122§ 2E5%  S5EHL b
Between  Between
On Lessthan 1and2 2and5 Over
demand 1 year years years 5years Total
BETT  AETT BBt B%Tn AT AT
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

=28 Consolidated
WZZE-ME+-F=F+—H  At31December 2014
ERE ST Trade payables - 795,117 - - - 795117
[EEBARAMERNERR Accruals and other
payables - 259,480 - - - 259,480
ETUBRTER Trust receipt bank loan - 404,356 - - - 404,356
EERESBEERENN Mortgage loan subject to a
RIEET repayment on demand
clause 37,950 - - - - 37,950
EHBRTER Other bank borrowings - 205150 423289 - - 628439
37950 1664103 423,289 - - 2125342
WZE-RFE+-F=F+—H  At31December 2015
ENESER Trade payables - 657,280 - - - 657,280
[EEBARAMERNERR Accruals and other
payables - 276,613 - - - 276,613
ERMEBRTER Trust receipt bank loan - 365198 - - - 365193
EERESBEEENN Mortgage loan subject to a
RIEET repayment on demand
clause 31,050 - - - - 31,050
EHBRTER Other bank borrowings - 207,23 9118 420,785 - 637,139
31,050 1,506,322 9,118 420,785 - 1,967,275
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of
mortgage loan with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in
the loan agreement. The amounts include interest
payments computed using contractual rates. As a
result, these amounts were greater than the
amounts disclosed in the ‘on demand’ time band in
the maturity analysis contained above. Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the Directors
do not consider that it is probable that the bank will
exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The Directors believe that such
mortgage loan will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment date set out in the loan
agreements.

WEEoH - AARERBRERINRRER REREENY:

Maturity Analysis — Mortgage loans subject to a repayment on demand

clause based on scheduled repayments:

1§0L 26NL Rt
REXE 15 BPR2E  BORSE 5ENL RERELE
Morethan ~ More than
1yearbut  2years but Total
Within less than lessthan ~ More than undiscounted
On demand 1 year 2years 5years 5years  cash flows
BETT  A%TT  AETn A%t ABfn A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
RZE-RE+=A=+-H 31 December 2014 - 7,205 7,145 21,070 3,459 38,879
RZE-EF+ZA=t-A 31 December 2015 - 7,134 7,076 17,437 - 31,647

Wong’s International Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report
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3.2
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings less short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents.

The Group was in a net cash position as at 31 December
2015. The Group’s gearing ratio was 6.7% as at 31
December 2014.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of the following financial assets and liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts:

o Trade and other receivables
° Short-term bank deposits
° Cash and cash equivalents

° Trade and other payables
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December

8 2014.
F14H PO FE38% 4azE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETT BT BT BETx
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
AIHEEEREE Available-for-sale financial
assets 41,315 - - 41,315
= Liabilities
TTHEERTA Derivative financial
instrument - 774 - 774

Wong’s International Holdings Limited 2015 Annual Report
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3 H¥RKREREE) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 ARBEEMLF (&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
TREWAEER_ZE—AF+A The following table presents the Group’s assets and
Zt+—HEAARBAEFEZEERE liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December
f& o 2015.

F1HR F2M EIR k]
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BETRT A%Tn BETr  BRT=R
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

BE Assets
R ESREE Available-for-sale financial
assets 12,983 - - 12,983

&8 Liabilities

PTHEeRIA Derivative financial instrument - 731 - 731

BN B4 BoBmREIM BN There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during

MR o the period.

(@ Z1HLmIA (@) Financial instruments in level 1
EEZRTESENSRTAY A The fair value of financial instruments traded in
RBEBERESBNTIEREY active markets is based on quoted market prices at
BE o (Y MEBA S EREHE L the reporting date. A market is regarded as active if
SR RN R (TRE quoted prices are readily and regularly available
B RBRRG B MRS from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
M RE MR % F LA pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
FEABET TSRS - BT prices represent actual and regularly occurring
BEEATRETE AEEBEN market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
S REENTEREAEHER quoted market price used for financial assets held
B ZETHEAFAS1E o by the Group is the current bid price. These

instruments are included in level 1.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(b) Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the

instrument is included in level 2.

Level 2 derivative financial instruments comprise
interest rate swaps. The fair value of interest rate
swaps is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely
as little as possible on entity specific estimates.

(c) Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is

included in level 3.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charges where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives. It will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a
change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
expense in future periods.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations or market valuations. These
calculations require the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell or
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the
business; and (jii) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate.

Changing the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties is performed in
accordance with the “Valuation Standards on Valuation of
Properties” published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation is reviewed semi-annually by
qualified valuers by considering the information from a
variety of sources including but not limited to:

(i) comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market; and

(i)  rental income derived from the existing tenancies
with due provision for any reversionary income
potential.

The fair value of investment properties is determined by
using valuation technique. Details of the judgement and
assumptions have been disclosed in Note 16.

Changes to the assumptions used in deriving the
valuation could have a significant risk of causing material
adjustment to the carrying amounts in the statement of
financial position.

Estimated provision for inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-
downs on inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-downs requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (continued)

(e) Estimated impairment of receivables

(f)

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. Provisions are applied to receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of
impairment of receivables requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact the
carrying value of receivables and loss for the impairment
of receivable is recognised in the years in which such
estimates have been changed.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be required.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled. When the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax charges
in the period in which such estimates have been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s senior executive management is considered as the
Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”). The Group is
currently organised into three operating divisions:

Electronic Manufacturing Service (‘EMS”) — manufacture and
distribution of electronic products for EMS customers.

Original Design and Manufacturing (“ODM”) — original design
and manufacturing for both EMS and ODM customers.

Property Investment — development, sale and lease of
properties.

The CODM reviews the performance of the Group on a regular
basis and reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM
assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of segment results. This measurement basis includes
profit or loss of the operating segments before other income,
other gains/(losses) — net, interest income, interest expense
and income tax expense but excludes corporate and
unallocated expenses. Other information provided to the
Group’s management is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated financial statements.
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o EER (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
LYES
EMSEF  ODMERM REIM 4z
Property
EMS ODM investment
division division division Total
BT T BET T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BE-Z-H&F+=A8 For the year ended
=+—HIEE 31 December 2015
FEla=B1E Total gross revenue 3,800,775 1,109 - 3,801,884
2B R S Inter-segment revenue (973) - - (973)
MR ES External revenue 3,799,802 1,109 - 3,800,911
DEELE Segment results 230,911 (3,922) 423,968 650,957
e REHET T Depreciation and
amortisation charges 40,594 21 1 40,616
JE(LE &R HE Share of profit of joint
ventures - - 426,010 426,010
WEMERAREEED Change in fair value of
investment properties - - 694 694
GEEAON Rental income - - 916 916
BEARFAL Capital expenditure 46,946 - - 46,946
ERTRERE Loans to joint ventures - - 39,933 39,933
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5

DEBER (4E) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
LES
EMSHEFS  ODMEEFT BB FERE
Property
EMS ODM  investment
division division division Total
BETIT BT BETIT BET T
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
HE-_ZT—WNF+=-A For the year ended
—t—HIFE 31 December 2014
EEmBE Total gross revenue 4,122,288 17,062 - 4,139,350
2Bk Inter-segment revenue (15,244) - - (15,244)
MRS External revenue 4,107,044 17,062 - 4,124,106
DEPELE Segment results 272,265 (11,211) 431,517 692,571
ERBHET T Depreciation and
amortisation charges 33,776 33 64 33,873
JEIE & &R FENHE Share of profit of joint
ventures - - 430,320 430,320
KEMENRBEEZD Change in fair value of
investment properties - - 1,810 1,810
M WA Rental income - - 2,502 2,502
BARFAL Capital expenditure 43,135 - - 43,135
ERTEERE Loans to joint ventures - - 58,497 58,497
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5 oIER(E) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
EMS £8P ODMIZF YEREIHM k]
Property
EMS ODM investment
division division division Total
BETT BET T BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-ZB-HAF+-A=+-H As at 31 December 2015
DEEE Segment assets 2,343,289 8,669 35,391 2,387,349
BETENER Interests in joint ventures - = 2,098,576 2,098,576
2RI HEELE Total reportable
segment assets 2,343,289 8,669 2,133,967 4,485,925
R-E—E+-—A=+—H As at 31 December 2014
DEEE Segment assets 2,474,479 10,873 35,568 2,520,920
EEMENER Interests in joint ventures - - 1,632,633 1,632,633
RS BEERE Total reportable segment
assets 2,474,479 10,873 1,668,201 4,163,553

SHBEELERENE BERRE ®E
W BB LR iERE ZTRHE
% BE- EKESER BEARE. T
REMEKER  HEHEErDEE &
MPTERRRERESZEY  BTRE
TR ESMAE EERSHEE - B
BEATRERCERKSRERE -
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Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, leasehold land and land use
rights, restricted cash, inventories, trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, non-current
assets held for sale, short-term bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents, but exclude available-for-sale financial assets,
deferred income tax assets, amounts due from associates and
corporate and unallocated assets.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

A reconciliation of reportable segment results to profit before
income tax is provided as follows:

—F-1fF —T-mF

2015 2014

BT T BT IT

HK$’000 HK$’000

T 2RO EBEE Reportable segment results 650,957 692,571

HAb YA Other income 9,408 12,026

Hzs (Fi8) — F5 Other gains/(losses) — net 19,549 (3,210)

BEKA — FE Finance costs — net (10,335) (7,920)
ERKRDEFREZ Corporate and unallocated

expenses (26,701) (22,911)

R B 88 A1 A Profit before income tax 642,878 670,556

TRBESBEARRGEEZHENT

Reportable segments assets are reconciled to total assets as

follows:

—EB-HF —E—O4E
2015 2014
BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
2R DEEE Reportable segment assets 4,485,925 4,153,553
AEHEEmEE Available-for-sale financial assets 12,983 41,315
BIEFEMERE Deferred income tax assets 10,727 7,558
JRE LS B 8 N B R IE Amounts due from associates 6 30
TERRDEEE Corporate and unallocated assets 106,353 110,160

REMBRARANBEE Total assets per consolidated
statement of financial position 4,615,994 4,312,616
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5 oIER(E) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HEBEABE ZYRNOT : Reconciliations of other material items are as follows:
—F-nfF —
2015 2014
BET T BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
e R T Depreciation and amortisation charges
— —Iz# D EBAARR — Reportable segment total 40,616 33,873
NGIEGED — Corporate headquarters 2,621 2,614
43,237 36,487
=N Capital expenditure
- —Iz# DEERE — Reportable segment total 46,946 43,135
NGIEGE — Corporate headquarters 6 43
46,952 43,178
AR BEREFM - LT AREEIRME The Company is domiciled in Bermuda. Analysis of the Group’s
miHE JﬁZH&Z SOMOGEE B3E 7k revenue by geographical market, which is determined by the
E) destination of the invoices billed, is as follows:
—F-I1%F —T-mF
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
JbZEM North America 564,716 554,272
DM BEEE) Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 1,924,041 2,047,919
B Europe 623,537 696,909
o Hong Kong 688,617 825,006
3,800,911 4,124,106
BHE-—ZE-TLTHE+-A=+—8IEE 4 For the year ended 31 December 2015, revenues of
% 4 203 503, OOO7E( — T pUE o EK approximately HK$1,203,503,000 (2014: HK$1,005,051,000),
T-—MF: 8 ﬁﬁ%‘923,517,0007—E ) R HK$468,968,000 (2014: HK$477,089,000) were derived from
468,968,0007C( — T — P 4 : B K the top three external customers respectively. These revenues
477,089,0007T) Z U262 Bk B8 = KSR are attributable to the EMS division.

P o %5 W BEMS FRPT 1S AR ©
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5 SIER(E) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
U TNAREBRRMETISE D ZIEREEE Analysis of the Group’s non-current assets by geographical
DT market is as follows:

—F-1fF —T-mF

2015 2014

BT T B TT

HK$°000 HK$’000

JEEM North America 26 30

TMN(TBEES) Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 233,669 241,249

M Europe 71 117

BB Hong Kong 2,197,433 1,775,040

2,431,199 2,016,436
ERHEELEYLE B RDE 85y Non-current assets comprise property, plant and equipment,
SR T E R AR investment properties, leasehold land and land use rights,
% AR ESRSE - TS R H A EUEE interests in joint ventures, available-for-sale financial assets,
S RIREES  WTOERTEFREREE deposits and other receivables and restricted cash. They

exclude deferred income tax assets.
6 EAlgA 6 OTHER INCOME

—F-1fF —F—MF

2015 2014

BETT BT

HK$’000 HK$’000

He WA Rental income 916 2,502

Hib Others 8,492 9,524

9,408 12,026
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7 BEERIEX(BRESE#HE)

7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

—EB-HF —E-NF
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’'000

TE - #H4a 2R HMBERET Wages, salaries, allowances and
other termination benefits 425,091 421,761

BRSNS ER-RETE Pension costs — defined

contribution schemes 45,787 47,627
470,878 469,388

AEBMABEBMBESERREERILAHIER
Bartal([AESFE]) - RESFTEZE
ERASEEESRABE  UE2HFABEX
AAEE - REATESHE AEBRERE
SEADRAEERER 2B AEEE
B (E& BB BB BIEG)
25% - NEEREBZHERERYAEA
B80T (ZE—HF - AT —MF
SNARETAEE1,5007T) o 2 IR R
BTEE -

REARAME(THERDMBARZEER
IR AT AL BRINEFIFHBIAKE -

BRATEIM B2 R ZBEF ERBE RS
W - REBEBFER - BEATZARER
K2 EXFHE MRGFRAE 2 RAKE -
FREBFEERKER ZRIKE

WAEARBZREERE AR RN B
45,787,000 7c( —Z— P04 : B#E 47,627,000
TO)IEAREBBAY RFEE M Z ST E RN
2K e
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The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Fund Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the Fund Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Under the
Fund Scheme, each of the Group and its employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income as defined in the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Both the Group’s and the
employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per
month (2014: HK$1,500 per month from June 2014). The
contributions are fully and immediately vested for the
employees.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) are members of retirement benefits schemes
operated by the PRC government.

The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the state retirement schemes in the PRC. The
employees are entitled to retirement pension calculated with
reference to their basic salaries on retirement and their length of
service in accordance with the relevant government regulations.
The PRC government is responsible for the pension liability to
the retired staff.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement of
approximately HK$45,787,000 (2014: HK$47,627,000)
represents contributions payable to the schemes by the Group
in respect of the current financial year.
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8 PBRATBHIATFIE 8 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
BREFEHRIAE ST - Profit before income tax is analysed as follows:
—F-IfF —
2015 2014
BET T BETT
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
ZE RN & Auditor’s remuneration 3,050 3,235
M - WEREBEITE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 42,608 35,843
FHE b Ko+ b {sh P 2 8 Amortisation on leasehold land and
land use rights 629 644
THREFEEEERS Operating lease rental in respect of
land and buildings 13,703 12,195
NHEEEHRAX Utility expenses 29,206 31,061
BRE Transportation 33,559 37,770
{LEGRFEER Chemicals and consumables 38,688 45,842
Hith Others 78,848 84,068
E - B HMmSE T HRE Total depreciation, amortisation and
other operating expenses 240,291 250,658
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9 Hutkzx (&#E) — FHE 9 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET

—E-IF —T—mE
2015 2014
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
[N B 5 R B A fE R BRI E Write-back of trade and other payables 2,777 4,254
B 5 BT E M EH 2 B E 5 R UA Write-back of trade receivables
previously written-off 529 -
O RN S D R FUB R E R Write-back of impairment provision
on amounts due from associates 1,366 20
eI AN/ (FE) — F8 Gains/(losses) on financial
instrument — net
- RER — Unrealised 43 123
- BER — Realised (640) (779)
HEME  BEREE 2/ (BE) Gains/(losses) on disposal of
property, plant and equipment 741 (456)
P Uzs — 35 Exchange gains — net 17,992 4,713
A ESHEERE Impairment for available-for-sale financial
assets (1,230) -
HEMHHESHEE W Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets 7,957 -
HEFENEERBEE 2 W Gain on disposal of non-current
assets held for sale 3,547 -
MEBAREREE Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries (13,533) -
BYEERE Impairment for intangible assets - (13,054)
HEREME 2 W= Gain on disposal of an investment property - 1,963
19,549 (3,210)
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10 EERSAEEEZMHME 10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) EE=EME (a) Directors’ emoluments
REBE_ET—RF+-_A=+—H The emoluments of Directors for the year ended 31
IFFEEZEEMSEIIWT ¢ December 2015 is set out below:

AR
WEXEE  HUESRE
HfpRAe  BUEAE  BEZEAT  SHAZER
e e BiERA FERE  fiReE  2EIER Ehe fme" &He
Remuneration ~ Emoluments
paid or paid or
Employer’s receivable receivable
Estimated contributionto  inrespectof  inrespect of

money value  aretirement accepting Director’s
Discretionary Housing of other benefit office other Total
Fees Salaries bonus allowance benefits scheme as Director services'  emoluments

BRI BRI BRI BRI ERTR BT BRI AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

T@5(fa)  Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Note &) 60 3823 2,192 - - 18 - = 6,003
IEH Wong Yin Man, Ada 60 1,791 1,992 - - 18 - - 3,861
RE Chan Tsze Weh, Gabriel 60 683 200 - - = = 5 943
BRE Wan Man Keung 60 2,302 1,992 - - 18 - - 4372
#5XIB(HfEb)  Hung Wing Shun, Edmund
(Note b) 6 122 - - - 2 o o 130
> 0 Li Ka Cheung, Eric 130 - - = = - - - 130
BRE Yu Sun Say 130 - - = = - - B 130
ER% Alfred Donald Yap 130 - - = - 5 - - 130
%+A(HiEc)  Cheung Chi Chiu, David
(Note c) 13 - - - - o 5 - 13
2% Total 649 8,721 6,376 - - 56 - - 15,802
# ERERARGIHEMBARTERN # Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of Director’s other
ERRBEEMEERES N ERD services refer to those in connection with the management of the
e affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
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10 EERSREERBZME (&) 10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(@) E=M< (&) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
REBEE-_ZT—NF+=-_A=+—H The emoluments of Directors for the year ended 31
IEFEZEEMeRINNT : December 2014 is set out below:

HEXEE  APEIRE
HfpMs  RAENHE  BEZEAI BigER
ne i BiFiEL EERE  REE  ZBEIHR e et i
Remuneration Emoluments
paid or paid or
receivable recelvable
Employer's in respect of in respect of
Estimated  contribution fo accepting Director's
Discretionary Housing  money value of aretiement office other Total
Fees Salaries bonus alowance  other benefs  benefit scheme as Director senvices’ emoluments

BETT BETT BETR BT BETR BETT BB BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T (Ha)  Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Note g) 50 2,786 978 - - 17 - - 3831

18@ Wong Yin Man, Ada 50 1,183 978 - - 17 - - 2228

Bz Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 50 644 100 - - - - - 794

EFR(MEd)  Tan Chang On, Lawrence (Note d) % 598 578 - - - - - 1,201

BRE Wan Man Keung 50 1,939 978 - - 17 - - 2,984

g3 LiKa Cheung, Eric 120 - - - - - - - 120

BER Yu Sun Say 120 - - - - - - - 120

X% Alfred Donald Yap 120 - - - - - - - 120

et Total 585 7,150 3612 - - 51 - - 11,398

# EREREARRAIKENE AR E # Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of Director’s other
MEBEHEEMESRBEHHER services refer to those in connection with the management of the
oS affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

B E Notes:

(@) FRKEERKTARITHRAE - WERT (a) Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Chief Executive Officer of the
IR EL BN S5 IME I # 5R - Company, no separate disclosure in respect of the remuneration of

the CEO has been made.

(0) BEKIELEER —T—RF+—A=+HAB (b) Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund has been appointed as an
BEZEERWITES - Executive Director on 25 November 2015,

(o) REBLER-_ZT—RF+—A=+hAH (© Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David has been appointed as an
BEZERELIERITES - Independent Non-executive Director on 25 November 2015.

d EFLEEER-T-NFLA=HET (@) Mr. Tan Chang On, Lawrence resigned as Director on 3 July 2014,
EE-
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10 ESERSHEEEZM< (F)

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEME (&)

BHE-_ZT—AEE_Z—NF+_A
—t+—BHLFE BMEEEHEXR
ERETMAEE -

EERINEFN
VEEMEFRAREMNRE

—EFR-F-mF+=A=+
BRI -

—F
—H

ESRIEBRHEF

A AEE B ERNRE
F-RFR-F-ME+-B=t-
BILFREAA -

REHESREROE=FFHN
RE

WRE-F-AFR-F-MES
A=+—BILFER  ARALER
R FIRBNE=H L ERNRLE -

MES TREESEFNZEA
ERERZEFESHEEIRREMHR
MER EEXRMNEMLIZH

REBE-FT-AFR-_FT-NF+=
A=+— 8 L FE RE R E Sk F 4
B WERAES IRFEFEHDH
FEABRBLZEEENHETREMR
ERER  EEFMELEMRZS °

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

No Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
in any of the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Directors’ retirement benefits

No Directors’ retirement benefits were paid during the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Directors’ termination benefits

No Directors’ termination benefits were paid during the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available Directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available Directors’ services during the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of Directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such Directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were made
available in favour of Directors, body corporates controlled
by and connected entities with such Directors subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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10 EERSREEE M= (&)

(H EBRXRS REIESHTHE
R

RBE_ZT-—AFR-_FT-—MNF+=
A=+ AL FELERRFRNEM
R ARBUEFT LT AEEE
BMARBEFTERKLHEREERR
BEABRNEERR S  WHREL -

() EEREESMEAL

FA-AEEREESSME AL
BRE=ZR%(ZT-—NF mH)EF-
HEZHMECEN EX2NZ DM -
BTIME(ZT—mOF: —H)AL2Z
FERTHREN S ST -

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include three (2014: four)
Directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining two (2014: one) individual is as follows:

—F-nfF —F—MmF
2015 2014
BEF T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fe MEMEF Salaries and other benefits 2,403 1,235
14T Bonus 959 78
RIS AR EHE G2 Pension costs — defined
contribution schemes 16 17
3,378 1,330
AE
Number of individual
—F-I1% —TlF
2015 2014
ME&EE Emolument bands
FE 9,000,001 7T — ##1,500,000 7T  HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 = 1
A4 500,001 7T — 7 2 000,000 7T  HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 2 -

FRARERENME TES
TERWEIWEMAREE KA
B1% 2 BRI S IF ARER(E -
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No emolument was paid by the Group to the Directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.
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10 EERSREEREZME () 10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(h SREEE(FEFESE )M (h) Senior management’s (excluding Directors)
gE emoluments by band
SHREREE(TeEREE)2HMeEN T The emoluments of senior management (excluding
AT EE : Directors) fell within the following bands:

AE

Number of individuals
—ZE-HF —E-mF
2015 2014

<= E Emolument bands
¥ 500,001 7T — B #1,000,000t  HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 - 3
711,000,001 7t — 81,500,000 HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 5 3
71 500,001 7t — #6#2,000,000 7t HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 2 -
11 BERAR — FE 11 FINANCE COSTS — NET

—F-IfF —F-MmF
2015 2014
BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000

RE U A Finance income

BITEHZFEMLA  Interestincome on bank deposits 8,662 12,875

& RN Finance costs

BITEFZABRAZ  Interest expenses on bank borrowings (18997)  (20.799)

REKA — F5E Finance costs — net (10,335) (7,920)
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12

FrEHiBA X

ARREREEMERERE BEE-F
—NEFERILE-

EBNEHEREEASRRE B 2 ATE
R R IR B E165%( — B — [ F ¢
16.5%) 5T HE s -

A @R B Rk H B A R B AN R Bl AT
BROICEMSR]D  HEAGHEFFEZ
25% (=ZF—PU%F : 25%)  HAEBMZ2E
MBARESEE (M) AR AR ([FE5E
MBI EmEEMNET AR TRIRDCE
([EFRHEBZE]) JZE15% EEDER
BEE H-_ZT——F—A—BHK A
=F HE_Z-NFE+-_A=+-AH8-K
HE-_T—AF+-_A=+—HItFE  FE
BEMKIEEES TR CEER  B#
BEZ15%EECEMEHRE - AH=F
BEE-ET—+tF+=-A=+—HRH-

SFARARE RS RRE

12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2016.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Hong Kong.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to the
China Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) at a rate of 25% (2014:
25%) on the estimated profits, except for Welco Technology
(Suzhou) Limited (“WTSZ”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group. WTSZ was granted a preferential CIT Rate of 15%
under the New and High Technology Enterprises (“NHTE”)
status with effect from 1 January 2012 for a period of three
years till 31 December 2014. During the year ended 31
December 2015, WTSZ succeeded in renewing its NHTE status
and will continue to entitle to the preferential CIT Rate of 15%
for another three years till 31 December 2017.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

—E-HF —EF-NNF
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EHMEH Current income tax

— BEFER — Hong Kong profits tax 8,000 16,271
— FINETE — Overseas taxation 43,842 34,225
RIEFTSH (FIFE23) Deferred income tax (Note 23) (3,885) 1,482

BEFE (RERE) BETR (Oven)/under-provision in prior years
— BHARREH — Current income tax (3,312) 1,983
— BIEFTSHEL (FHFE23) — Deferred income tax (Note 23) = -
44,645 53,961
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12 FEBAX (&) 12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
EHRAEEGRBRAMEZHEBEARNEAS The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
GHEBEFEE A 80 i T T R AT1S B a8 theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
MEREANN - tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as

follows:
—E-HF —E-OF
2015 2014
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BR AT BLATFIE Profit before income tax 642,878 670,556

RERARSHAEZBARFERTE 2#IE  Tax calculated at the domestic tax
rates applicable to profits in the

respective places 113,950 115,054
EERAEDEEE BT E Tax effects of joint ventures’ results
HIBRTHIE reported, net of tax (70,292) (71,003)
AR Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes 5,274 6,990
BAERBIA Income not subject to tax (1,235) (1,622)
A R IR I TS B E Tax losses and other temporary
KT TE B 18 & E A B iS5 differences for which no deferred
income tax asset was
recognised 260 2,559
BEEE GRERE) /BHETE (Over)/under-provision in prior years (3,312) 1,983
e Income tax expense 44,645 53,961
BEEMETEHE B18%(ZF — U F The weighted average applicable tax rate was 18% (2014:
17%) ° 17%).
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13 K2

—AFRZZE-NFENNREDRA
,%’7 ,% %1538,279,00075( Bl AE®K0.08TT) &
75 131,101,000 7T (B AR & #0.06570) © #§
REARREERRBFAS LEZERZE

B

E-T-RAF+ZA=1— Eluzirifiﬁﬂ%

13 DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2015 and 2014 were approximately
HK$38,279,000 (HK$0.08 per share) and HK$31,101,000
(HK$0.065 per share) respectively. A final dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2015 of HK$0.045 per share,
amounting to a total dividend of approximately HK$21,532,000,

B ETRBEKCMETL A KK B will be proposed at the upcoming annual general meeting of the
21,532,0007C ° It 55 B 5 ¥Rk 0 R IR 2K Company. These financial statements do not reflect this final
FERT 2 REARR B, o dividend payable.
—F-1fF L
2015 2014
BT T BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT IR S — & A 0.03 7T Interim dividend paid — HK$0.03
T4 B¥0.047T) (2014: HK$0.04) per share 14,355 19,139
%i/)ﬁifiﬁﬁﬁ” 8 —FRAE0.045 7T Proposed final dividend —
(ZE—14F : #B%0.057T) HK$0.045 (2014: HK$0.05)
per share 21,532 23,924
35,887 43,063
14 SEREF 14 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) EHA& (a) Basic
GREREF TRA DN TES ARG Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
FIBR LA E R B T B Y T profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
et E weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.
—E-RfF —ME
2015 2014
RABEA AEEFIE B TIT) Profit attributable to owners of the
Company (HK$’'000) 598,233 616,595
BR{THAB METHE(THR)  Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue (in
thousands) 478,484 478,484
FRERERN (GEEIT) Basic earnings per share (HK$) 1.25 1.29
(b) #8H (b) Diluted

BENMEFE2HRSREEARN -
A M EFE A EEE 2 #5858
A% o

No diluted earnings per share is presented for both years
because there is no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding throughout both years.
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15 Y% BENMSZE 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
B - e
THREF RE GAREE HE A&t
Plant,
machinery
Land and and Furniture Motor
buildings  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total

BAETT AETT ABETT BETT BETT
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HKE'000  HKEO000

HEZZ-—MF—F—HIEFE Yearended 1 January 2014

KAE Cost 199,296 759,286 142,029 9,383 1,109,994
EFMERRAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (30,489 (685,6406) (102,483) (5,939 (824,557)
REFE Net book amount 168,807 73,640 39,546 3,444 285,437
BE-_Z—ME+-F=+—H Yearended
LFE 31 December 2014
HURmFE Opening net book amount 168,807 73,640 39,546 3,444 285,437
NE Additions - 40,663 577 1,938 43,178
HE Disposals - (1,226) (520) (182) (1,928)
e Depreciation (6,815) (23,019) (4,225) (1,784) (35,843)
ERBEES Currency translation
differences (1,571) (2,953) 53 (16) (4,487)
HRREEE Closing net book amount 160,421 87,105 35,431 3,400 286,357
R-ZE—NE+-A=+—8 At 31 December 2014
BAE Cost 197,138 779,130 141,430 10,557 1,128,255
RETERRIE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (36,717) (692,025) (105,999 (7,157) (841,898)
REFE Net book amount 160,421 87,105 35,431 3,400 286,357
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15 Y% - BERZRE(E) 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
T RIEF k#E BRAREE RE =
Plant,
machinery  Furniture
Land and and and Motor
buildings equipment fixtures vehicles Total

BT BRIt BETT BERTr BETx
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000

BE-Z—1F Year ended
+ZA=+—HLEE 31 December 2015
HYIRREFE Opening net book
amount 160,421 87,105 35,431 3,400 286,357
NE Additions 353 43,414 1,444 1,741 46,952
k== Disposals (43) (227) - - (270)
TE Depreciation (7,202) (28,918) (4,476) (2,012) (42,608)
R E R Currency translation
differences (3,027) (7,072) (51) (44) (10,194)
HRREFE Closing net book
amount 150,502 94,302 32,348 3,085 280,237
R-E—AF At 31 December 2015
+=HA=+—8H
PRANE Cost 192,742 756,001 144,238 10,497 1,103,478
ZEHTE RORE Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment (42,240) (661,699) (111,890) (7,412) (823,241)
SREDFAE Net book amount 150,502 94,302 32,348 3,085 280,237
REESEATHREF  HE TR L The Group’s interest in leasehold land classified under land and
IREE A48 %66,687,000 (=& —PO4F : buildings with carrying amount of approximately
7515 68,333,000 L) * JIREBIEMEAA10 HK$66,687,000 (2014: HK$68,333,000) are on medium term
E50F 2R EHEARE - leases between 10 to 50 years located in Hong Kong.
R-E—RE+—A=+—H Bt RriE As at 31 December 2015, certain bank borrowings are secured
FHB Y EFIRTEH REE S LB on land and buildings with a carrying amount of approximately
90,6150007C( — T — pu 4F: & ¥ HK$90,615,000 (2014: HK$92,853,000) (Note 33).

92,853,000 7T) (£ 33) °
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16 REWE 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—F-1F —T-mF
2015 2014
BT BT
HK$’°000 HK$’000
R—HA—H At 1 January 27,920 98,717
AR BEER Fair value gains 694 1,810
= Disposals - (72,100)
BB EERE Currency translation differences (1,143) (507)
R+ZA=+—H At 31 December 27,471 27,920

AEBEZEMFEARZIKEMEZIOE
50 Z KA -

EXFRAREEMEEERSE

The Group’s interest in investment properties at their net book
values are on medium-term leases of 10 to 50 years.

Value of investment properties shown above comprises:

—F-1fF —F—MF
2015 2014
BT B TIT
HK$’°000 HK$’000
BBYE Properties in Hong Kong 7,300 7,100
BETHIND Properties outside Hong Kong 20,171 20,820
27,471 27,920
AEF(LEBR Valuation processes of the Group

BRENESFRLAAMSEERELEMRE K
EMER_T-RF+-_A=+t—HBzMHE
HBRAEMTESERFEARQAE
T ERBENEBMEEEREE - REFR
BB mEEINEIRN  AEFREMEL
RABEAEEARIIEHOT

AEBZHHEEGRM B REREETER
BEME HRNEEEERER REAS
Brz®ER  BEREEEZERFRGERRE
RERGLEFELTR—IR

The investment properties are valued annually on an open
market value basis. The valuations of the investment properties
at 31 December 2015 were carried out by an independent firm
of surveyors, Roma Appraisals Limited, who is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The fair value
measurement information for these investment properties in
accordance with HKFRS 13 is given below.

The Group’s finance team performs the valuations of financial
assets required for financial reporting purposes. This team
reports directly to the management. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the management and
the team at least once bi-annually, in line with the Group’s
reporting dates.
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16 REWE(E) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
AEBZHEBRRE (&) Valuation processes of the Group (continued)
EEEAZHEBREN SRS BEEN® Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting
b OMEIRAABEZEE - ERFTH date valuation discussions between the management and the
22— 8p  ZHEKRER2WmE  UEBARE team. As part of this discussion, the team presents a report that
EEEZER - explains the reasons for the fair value movements.

DABEEE

Fair value measurements
HEEENE EXHMTH EXTAH
BhigzRE R ABE B AE

Quoted Significant

prices in active other Significant

markets for observable unobservable

identical assets inputs inputs

(E14%) (%24%) (%E3#4%)

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

BETT BETT BETR

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

EROAEERE Recurring fair value
measurements

R-B-HF+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2015 - - 27,471

R-ZE-NME+—_A=+—H As at 31 December 2014 - - 27,920
FN B - FBoRREIR 2 HWEER o There were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and 3 during

the year.
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16 REWE(E) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
FRERTTBREEGAZSEBTEAR Fair value measurements using significant
EE(E34%) unobservable inputs (Level 3)

REMF
Investment properties
) BHREN @zt
Outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
BETT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
R-E-RF—-HF—H At 1 January 2015 7,100 20,820 27,920
DAEEKER Fair value gains 200 494 694
ERAEES Currency translation differences - (1,143) (1,143)
R-Z-5F+-A=+-H At 31 December 2015 7,300 20,171 27,471
FRARBEWRAE (RELFBEE Total unrealised gains for the year
FAGERBERATRENE included in the consolidated
AREEEH|BET) income statement for assets
held at the end of the year,
under ‘Change in fair value of
investment properties’ 200 494 694
RZZE-mE—H[—H At 1 January 2014 78,400 20,317 98,717
AR EEYRE Fair value gains 800 1,010 1,810
= Disposals (72,100) - (72,100)
EHRMEER Currency translation differences - (607) (607)
RZZE-ME+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2014 7,100 20,820 27,920
FRARERYREE (RERTHEE Total unrealised gains for the year
FAGERERA FENE included in the consolidated
NREEEH|ET) income statement for assets
held at the end of the year,
under ‘Change in fair value of
investment properties’ 800 1,010 1,810
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16 REY=X (&) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

ERAERTABRGABETELR
EE(F3&) (&)

ERTHREMEZ AN BECERERLR
EGE - ERRRAINREHARBEMR L E
W - WRERATG LIRS Z A L&
EXHEM R (MARR) & MEBFR
AZ BB RS

RERDRREEARARTSGHENE
i #EREEE KA L - ERMER - 5
T ERBHAIEMBLLE - IEE
BRYIRZ(E(E - tbIN - EER LB MM
BT ENERSTNE EEEIELRE
B MUBR - XNBHERETE-EX
ZAEMERBEI -

FA - BMERDALEZS -

AEBRESCEHERHNEYE - v15H
RA2F  AERBREMERERESR -5
BEHEMEaSRARE HE_T—1F
T A=Z+—BUFE  BEMEZHESK
NEEBH) B H16,0007C ( — B — 04 : 8
# 2 502,000 7T) °
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Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (continued)

Fair values of completed investment properties have been
valued by the direct comparison approach assuming sale of the
properties in their existing states with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant market and also
considered the basis of capitalization of the net income
receivable, if necessary.

The valuation have been made on the assumption that the
owners sell the properties in the open market without the
benefit of deferred term contracts, leasebacks, joint ventures,
management agreements or any similar arrangements which
would serve to increase the values of such properties. In
addition, no account has been taken of any option or right of
pre-emption concerning or affecting the sale of the properties
and no allowance has been made for the properties to be sold
in one lot or to a single purchaser.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

The Group leases out the investment properties under operating
leases, for an initial period of 2 years, with an option to renew
on renegotiated terms. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the gross
rental income from investment properties amounted to
approximately HK$916,000 (2014: HK$2,502,000).
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17 HE TR T {FEAE 17 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE
RIGHTS
REBERHEE TR T A ERIETE The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
NG BRERE  REZEEZESTW represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net book
N values are analysed as follows:
—E-HF —E-OF
2015 2014
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
n—HA—H At 1 January 21,111 22,297
i Amortisation (629) (644)
e =R Currency translation differences (1,115) (542)
R+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 19,367 21,111
REFBNZERZEAEZHE T &+ The Group’s interest in leasehold land and land use rights at
R X AMNNEBIBIN 102 6504F their net book values are on medium term leases between 10 to
ZHREAEE o 50 years located outside Hong Kong.
18 EZ NTNIRE 18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
—F-1fF —T-0F
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
B N AR E Investments in associates
— EIEEEFE — Share of net assets = -
—mE — Goodwil - _
FERE Total = -
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18 B¥ERRNKRE (&) 18

AEBRAEEBREAR (8 ET) 2 W -
XENMEHREEEMAGBNT

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

The Group’s share of the revenue and results of its associates,
all of which are unlisted, and their aggregate assets and
liabilities, are as follows:

- —F—mE

2015 2014

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BB E Total assets - -
FEN=Nr Total liabilities = -
BEFE Net assets - -
Uz Revenue = -
NEER)E Profit for the year = -

REBRE THE QARG ZEEBERZ
EMENRZREFE  WAKECKR LR
RIEMHILEHERNFZEE - HREMER
Bl Z AR IR R 2 RIER B R E R R E
BB (AFERR)MT :

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
result of certain associates as the Group’s share of losses in
these associates exceed its net investments in these associates.
The amounts of unrecognised share of loss of associates,
extracted from the relevant financial statements of associates,
both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

—E-1F —E—pE
2015 2014
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RETARMERENE E A RBE Accumulated unrecognised share of
losses of associates (700) (700)

BMEREBE AR _Z—0F+=H
St BZHBRYBENRBE - EFERR
RZZB-RF+RA=+—B XEEKE
NAENAEEL TEE -
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No disclosure on the particulars and summarised financial
information of the associates as at 31 December 2015 is made.
In the opinion of the Directors, the associates of the Group as
at 31 December 2015 are not material to the Group.
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19 S ENERS 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
—E-HF —Z—uF
2015 2014
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
JEIEBEFE Share of net assets 846,310 420,300
BERTEE8hE Loans to joint ventures 1,252,266 1,212,333
2,098,576 1,632,633
EILEEFEZEBOMTINT Movements in share of net assets is analysed as follows:
—E-1%F ke Stk S
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
m—H—H At 1 January 420,300 (10,020)
[EiEEE ﬁ%ﬂ bEd Share of profit of joint ventures 426,010 430,320
R+=—A=+— At 31 December 846,310 420,300
R-ZBE—FE+—-A=+—8 AZ£ERI As at 31 December 2015, the Group had interests in the
TIHELITEFESEPEREAREL - following principal joint ventures, which are unlisted:
Pk AR S 4t B BEEERLA TEXK BELE HERAE
Place of Proportion of ownership Nature of the Measurement
Name of company incorporation interest % Principal activities relationship  method
—E-1F —B-QmF
2015 2014
EBRBRES REZK GEa 3
Bollardbay Limited BVI 35.70 35.70 Investment holding Note 1 Equity
HERERAF BE NEER GRS g
Easywise Limited Hong Kong 35.70 35.70 Property development Note 1 Equity
EERBRES REZK BEY 3
Talent Chain Investments BVI 35.70 35.70 Investment holding Note 2 Equity
Limited
BRRERRRA BB MEER HEY o
Crown Opal Investment Limited  Hong Kong 35.70 35.70 Property development Note 2 Equity
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19

BEhENERS ()

f§5E1 © Bollardbay Limited 2 Ki B A 7] S BR A 74#E

EMEBRRER -

Ff3E2 : Talent Chain Investments Limited 2 ffi /& 2 & 7@
BITERRA RN EMEEBELS -

SEERANREE-_ZT—NE+_A
=+ RAILFEMBEEDE - R —RER
BREPHERITMENRESREEREED
¥mAEzERNRARMERERZEES - A
W n] et 8 - UWREZRSE -
MEEFZEBRAETRAG S D ERRE
Re ANEEBERGAEETCEHEE_ZE—A1F
T A=+ BLEFEZFHEFOBE
426,010,000T( = & — g F: B &
430,320,0007L) - B A EEEHEZT
—RAFET A=+ HUEFENFESERE
LHEELERENREMELLEERSZD
7B 357,944,000 T (ZF — Y4 : &) o

Bollardbay Limited + 5 {& & R A 7 » Talent
Chain Investments Limited & 7@ B % & A R
RNalBIARR - EfH I ERETISER

19
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

Note 1: Easywise Limited, a subsidiary of Bollardbay Limited, is engaged in the

business of property development.

Note 2: Crown Opal Investment Limited, a subsidiary of Talent Chain Investments

Limited, is engaged in the business of property development.

Easywise Limited commenced selling of properties during the
year ended 31 December 2014. Revenue from sales of
completed properties in the ordinary course of business is
recognised by the joint venture when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the properties are transferred to
buyers, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; and it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the joint venture. The Group’s
attributable share of the joint ventures’ profit for the year ended
31 December 2015 aggregated to approximately
HK$426,010,000 (2014: HK$430,320,000). Share of profit of
the joint ventures for the year ended 31 December 2015
included the share of fair value gain of investment properties
owned by the joint venture of approximately HK$357,944,000
(2014: Nil).

Bollardbay Limited, Easywise Limited, Talent Chain Investments
Limited and Crown Opal Investment Limited are private
companies and there is no quoted market price available for
their shares.
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19 RELENER ()

ATEHAREMEBEACAERLRLZ

MIEERBE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

Set out below is the summarised financial information for the
joint ventures that are material to the Group.

ek
Talent Chain
Bollardbay Limited Investments Limited Total
—2-nf "T-MF Z%F-5f _T-NF CZB-1f _T-MF
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
BETT BETL BRI BB BETT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
EE ASSETS
L3I0k Non-current
REME Investment properties 1,379,000 - - - 1,379,000 -
ERDEERT Total non-current assets 1,379,000 - - - 1,379,000 -
b)) Current
TEEEERE Total current assets 2424286 2733984 2,754,277 2635173 5178563  5369,157
B LIABILITIES
pi) Current
EREFHEREMTHEE Trade payable and other current
(TeRELRER) liabilities (excluding financial
liabilies) (223,907)  (348,502) (60) (B57)  (223967)  (348,559)
TEAEEE Total current liabilties (223,907)  (348,502) (60) (B7)  (223967)  (348,559)
i Non-current
SEBEE Financial liabilities (1,212177)  (1212177)  (2,756,221)  (2,636,528)  (3,968,398)  (3,848,705)
ERBAELE Total non-current liabilities (1,212,177)  (1212177)  (2,756,221)  (2,636,528)  (3,968,398)  (3,848,705)
EE/(8B)3E Net assets/(liabilties) 2,367,202 1,173,305 (2,004) (1412) 2365198 1,171,893
Wiz Revenue 317,211 2,024,363 - - 317,271 2,024,363
HERK Cost of sales (59,513)  (481,909) - - (59,513)  (481,909)
RERY Operating expenses (12,134) - - - (12,134) -
IBAY Administrative expenses (167) (166) (109) (105) (276) (271)
HERZ Selling expenses (16,412)  (104,936) (483) - (16,895)  (104,936)
RENELLEBZD Change in fair value of investment
properties 1,002,644 - - - 1,002,644 -
BEQLEHINE/ (H8) Profit/(loss) from continuing
operation 1,231,689 1,437,352 (592) (105) 1,231,007 1,437,247
FERRAY Income tax expense (37,792) (231,870) - - (37,792) (231,870)
BRETERESECLEBAE/(H8)  Profi/loss) after income tax from
continuing operation 1,193,897 1,205,482 (592) (108) 1,193,305 1,205,377
Hit2EBA Other comprehensive income = - - - - _
2EBA/(BB)E8 Total comprehensive income/(loss) 1,193,897 1,205,482 (592) (105) 1,193,305 1,205,377
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19 SEENER (E) 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
HRERSEHR Reconciliation of summarised financial
information
2R EERZEERN LS ERT 2K Reconciliation of the financial information presented to the
H1E 2 ¥8R - carrying amount of its interests in the joint ventures.
—E-HF —E—-mEF
2015 2014
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
W—R—BZE&E/(8f&)FE Net assets/(liabilities) at 1 January 1,171,893 (33,484)
FEFNE Profit for the year 1,193,305 1,205,377
R+ZR=+—RzEEFE Net assets at 31 December 2,365,198 1,171,893
BEDEZER@35.7% Interests in joint ventures @ 35.7% 844,376 418,366
5l Goodwiill 1,934 1,934
ELEEFE Share of net assets 846,310 420,300
fEh & &b EFE@35.7% Share of profit of joint ventures @ 35.7% 426,010 430,320
ERTEECEREER 2 S RBENRK The loans to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and will
X121Iﬂ BE EEASENRAER not be repaid in the coming 12 months. They represent the
R LERASBENAGEDEREFE L, — Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the
B - ZESTEBERHE - Group’s net investments in the joint ventures. The amounts are

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

R-ZE—RF+_A=+—H AEELE As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no capital
BHEEREAR 2 EREENKIAELE - commitments nor contingent liabilities related to the
development project.

20 |MEEE 20 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B EERERMENEN -FIEEFEED Intangible assets represented product development costs. All
REEZZT—HF+A=1T—RHILFERN intangible assets were impaired during the year ended 31
FE © December 2014,

—E-1F ke Stk S

2015 2014

BT T BEETFIT

HK$’000 HK$'000

m—A—H At 1 January - 13,054
A Impairment - (13,054)
R+—-—A=+—H At 31 December - -
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21

Bt 8 2 F] 21 SUBSIDIARIES
R-E—FRHF+_A=+—H TEWE Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are
NAIZFFIEWATN - as follows:
BEBITR REEEAG R
AR EB 7 X 3L i 26 R EEEH FEEY
Issued and Percentage of
Place of fully paid equity interest
Name of company incorporation share capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
“E-HF —TNF
2015 2014
HiEBRAAE B B2 REZER
Bondwide Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBRERRES PE¥1107T REER
Catel (B.V.1.) Limited BVI HK$110 100% 100%  Investment holding
FE - HERDHER
BUBEMK(EE)BRAR BB 7% 1,000,000 7T ZEBBREERE
Emerging Technology Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 95% 95%  Development, marketing
(Holdings) Limited and distribution of
wireless multimedia
mobile devices
REERRIEREER
KEBEBRAA S B2 T TR BRI
Siu Wai Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding and
acting as an agent for
its immediate holding
company
EBERRES 13E7T REER
Ubiquitous International Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
5 B2 REEZR
Wapdon Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
EMRHR ORI BRAR] A Y 7,500,000 % 7T BUEE FEM
Wellop Technology (Shenzhen) PRC US$7,500,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
Limited® manufacturing
EoRHEEMN) BR AR I 24,000,000 % 7T RIEEFEm
Welco Technology (Suzhou) Limited*  PRC US$24,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
manufacturing
EomETRBECRYDER AR HE 30,000,000 37T BEETEM
Welco Wong's Technology PRC US$30,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
(Shenzhen) Limited* manufacturing
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21

Bt 7] (48) 21 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BRTR AEBEEGRA
NCIEZY: 1 AR AL 3t B R ERADL FEEWR
Issued and Percentage of
Place of fully paid equity interest
Name of company incorporation share capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
ZE-RF ZT-NF
2015 2014
102,799,653
TN AN T REER
Wong’s Circuits (Holdings) Pte Ltd Singapore S$$102,799,653 100% 100%  Investment holding
FTREFERAF B 75 1,000,000 7T BFEME
Wong’s Electronics Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products trading
IRIXE(EE)ARAR O P 500 7T REER
Wong’s Industrial (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong HK$500 100% 100%  Investment holding
AR 20,000,000 A [ HENRTISHE
Wong's International Japan Inc. Japan JPY20,000,000 100% 100%  Sales and marketing
e 10,0002 7T misHhE
Wong'’s International USA United States of US$10,000 100% 100%  Marketing
Corporation America
# AR AINEBERE - # The company is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise.

RIS AR RS AN A S
BEEHHAEFEZTENBAT - A2
AEERAREERELS B LA E
ARAZZHHIEIBH TR -

BER TR TR 2 B AR 2 87
ERE  AAEERR/ZEMEARLA
EE-

HE - Z—AHF+_-_A=+t—BHIEFERNET
IR - HERAFMET B BTEREAR

The above lists the principal subsidiaries which principally
affected the results or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Company’s Directors and the Group’s
management, result in particulars of excessive length.

No summarised financial information for subsidiary that has
non-controlling interests is disclosed as the Directors consider
they are not material.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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22 TMEHEERMEE

22 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS
—F-1fF —F-MF
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
w—HR—H At 1 January 41,315 28,340
NRBEEZE Fair value changes (7,730) 12,975
HE Disposal (20,602) -
R+-—A=+—8” At 31 December 12,983 41,315

HHEEREEBENTRE

Available-for-sale financial assets include the followings:

—E-RF —T-ImF
2015 2014
BE¥T BETT
HK$°000 HK$'000

TR ARE S Listed equity securities
—REELT — Listed in Hong Kong 12,915 41,205
— REBAIMDE =T — Listed outside Hong Kong 68 110
12,983 41,315
FhEHNTE Market value of listed securities 12,983 41,315
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22 AtHEESRERE (&) 22 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)
—F-1F —T-MF
2015 2014
RETT B¥TT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EMB Non-current 68 41,315
T Current 12,915 _
HEt Total 12,983 41,315
REPEHIR  FRAAHEELREAELIRA As at the end of the reporting period, all available-for-sale
4 [E{EDEE o financial assets are stated at fair value.
R4 O RE SRR (BB 1R 5 1,230,000 75 (— Impairment loss of HK$1,230,000 (2014: HK$ nil) was
T ULE BT IT) o recognised during the year.
AP ESMEE Y EEEN T E®st The carrying amounts of available-for-sale financial assets are
1g : denominated in the following currencies:
—E—-HF —E-mF
2015 2014
BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
i Hong Kong dollar 12,915 41,205
B Sterling 68 110
12,983 41,315
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23 EEFBHEE (AE) 23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES)
DTABELCEREBHRMEBEEENNELEMRERE The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income
BEDN : tax liabilities is as follows:
—E-RF —E g
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
RSB E Deferred income tax assets 10,727 7,558
BEFEHRERE Deferred income tax liabilities (655) (757)
EEREERE Net deferred tax assets 10,072 6,801
BT FERIEE B @8 msmEmT The gross movements on the deferred income tax account is as
follows:
—EB-HF —E-NF
2015 2014
BET T BETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
W—H—H At 1 January 6,801 8,521
iR E W ERER (WE12) Recognised in the consolidated
income statement (Note 12) 3,885 (1,482)
ERmE R Currency translation differences (614) (238)
R+=—HA=+—H At 31 December 10,072 6,801
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23 EELFIEHERE (AE) (&) 23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (continued)

ﬂi‘?r?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ%*%?gz LEERAT - EEFT The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
EHRBEENBERNERZESHHINT - during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

BEEFTSHIBEE ¢ Deferred income tax assets:
AR ITE B’E #azE
Decelerated
tax
depreciation Provision Total
BT BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WZE—=%F+_A=+—H At 31 December 2013 7,210 1,820 9,030
RERA R EE TR (0BR), 7T A (Charged)/credited to the
consolidated income
statement (1,741) 507 (1,234)
BEHmE =R Currency translation
differences (191) 47) (238)
N-—E—NWE+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2014 5,278 2,280 7,558
REZAWRFERTA Credited to the
consolidated
income statement 8 3,775 3,783
ERBEER Currency translation
differences (340) (274) (614)
R-ZE-—HAF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2015 4,946 5,781 10,727
BEFTEFHIBEE Deferred income tax liabilities:
IEEFTE
Accelerated tax
depreciation
BT T
HK$'000
RZZE—=F+"A=+—H At 31 December 2013 (509)
RERE W R AR Charged to the consolidated income
statement (248)
R=Z-NF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2014 (757)
REZEAWRFERTA Credited to the consolidated income
statement 102
R=Z-AF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2015 (655)
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23 EEFREHREE (B6B)(E) 23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (continued)
RIEFFSTE B T A EARRA T 15 M) 25 7] Be 335 Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
BARRERT T HEIR M EE 2 BIEE forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
BETHEZ R_E—HAF+-_A=+— benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
H ANEETTRUEERENBE Z Het k8 December 2015, the Group has estimated unused tax losses of
A IEE B 4B 163,022,000 (= ZE—M approximately HK$163,022,000 (2014: HK$161,445,000)
£ EM161,445,0007T) © R A BLiE 8 available for offsetting against future profits. No deferred tax
ZEEE O BIEBEERABETIENZ - i) asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses as the
R TEEEBEREERIBEEE - TARIE realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profit
i85 Al PR HR AR B o from these tax loss carry-forwards is not probable. All the tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
Kppm TP EFMALNH B A RNRD No deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of the
ERZHFNBHRNEREEREAE - It withholding tax on the undistributed retained profits of certain
TTHRDRZEADRRERI N2 PRC incorporated subsidiaries as the distribution of these
SN E—RAFF+_A=+—H £A£E undistributed retained earnings is not probable. As at 31
A BT A S B B A Bl S i A 481 December 2015, the Group’s PRC incorporated subsidiaries
700,326,00070( — & — I F: & ¥ have approximately HK$700,326,000 (2014: HK$528,769,000)
528,769,000 7T ) Z KD IKIREBABF] o FEH A undistributed retained profits in aggregate. The applicable
A Z BB A B TR AR B 2 @B TE withholding tax rate on dividend distributed by PRC
BENF5%ZE10% ° incorporated subsidiaries is ranged from 5% to 10%.
24 & 24 INVENTORIES

—E-HEF —E—OF

2015 2014

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

R E Raw materials 233,252 289,967

& Work in progress 34,578 32,194

K o Finished goods 98,535 76,848

366,365 399,009
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25 EWE S RN 25 TRADE RECEIVABLES

—F-1F —TlF

2015 2014

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FEWE SRR Trade receivables 695,439 894,537

AEEGTESEPZBRMIEZNT30R
Z90HTE - B EKEERFLE -

The credit period allowed by the Group to its trade customers
mainly ranges from 30 days to 90 days and no interest is
charged.

REEERKE SRFIZRERBHZ RO

Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables by invoice date

Ul is as follows:
=F-EF —T-0F
2015 2014
BT T BETIT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
0&E60H 0-60 days 535,481 682,727
61 %90 H 61-90 days 105,482 173,670
HBiB90 H Over 90 days 54,476 38,140
695,439 894,537

RZZ-RF+-A=1t—HB EBREZRE
KB 64,778,000 7T (=T —M4F : B
88,249,0007T) B HA{B I MR 1B - % F iR
B 2T Y B R FRCE 2 BILE P
B - ZERUIRSRZREAITT

As of 31 December 2015, trade receivables of approximately
HK$64,778,000 (2014: HK$88,249,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing
analysis of these receivables is as follows:

— ke Stk S

2015 2014

BETT BETT

HK$’000 HK$'000

0Z60H 0-60 days 62,868 86,054
61290 H 61-90 days 1,749 2,133
HB3E 90 H Over 90 days 161 62
64,778 88,249
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25 MEWEZ R (E)

W HER-F-ME+-B=+—
B 3 A 5 MHOR 2R e 1
o RS AL PR PR RS
B IR RER G 2 BP A -

AEBEEHEEATHRERZMERKES
R EBIELEE - REBELER - ARME
EERUEEAES REA 2B @A
B EARE BN R U R T AR E LR E R
e

N2 HAPEENBAEERARS LS
FEUBE 32 BRETEL - AR B A A (I
AR -

REBERYWE SRR REEA TG’
&

25 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

There was no trade receivables which were impaired and
provided for as at 31 December 2015 and 2014. Trade
receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers from whom there was no recent
history of default.

The Group has fully provided for all trade receivables that are
determined to be not recoverable. Based on past experience,
the management believed that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of the remaining balances as there had
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
were considered fully recoverable.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above.
The Group does not hold any collateral on security.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

e —T—mE

2015 2014

BT T BET T

HK$’000 HK$’000

ETT United States dollar 472,385 626,683
AR Chinese renminbi 140,900 171,345
B Hong Kong dollar 82,154 96,509
695,439 894,537
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26 FEARIE  FTEREMEWERI 26 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

=F-IfF —ZT-mF

2015 2014

BET T BT IT

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEBEZIRS Deposits for fixed assets 1,920 3,337

ENEFEE Prepayments for inventories 6,310 6,144

FEUIZRE L Value added tax receivables 21,900 24,550

H b e UK BR SR N FE S FUOR Other receivables and prepayments 35,528 31,988

65,658 66,019

W SEmBEE D Less: non-current portion (1,920) (3,337)

mENER(D Current portion 63,738 62,682
FIE - Fe MEMERRZ ZEmMENTS The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other

BEHEHE receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

—E-I0F —ZT—-mE

2015 2014

BET T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

AR Chinese renminbi 35,348 39,462

ETT United States dollar 3,838 4,769

ot Hong Kong dollar 23,948 16,927

H Japanese yen 2,477 3,746

HAh Others a7 1,115

65,658 66,019
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27

28

B IS AR MY R

FE W Bt & R T FRIR

27 AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

JFE K B 2% N B 2008 A A %,%\&%?EE The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free

%?AHFJ FEEERKREZ A EEMES -
—hAFt-—A=+—8H" F’éuﬁlﬁﬁﬁ%’&
Iﬁi’]ﬁ%’ﬁ?n 349,000 (—F—M4F : B

and without pre-determined repayment terms. The carrying
amounts approximated their fair values. As at 31 December
2015, amounts due from associates of approximately

2,818,000 7T ) E1ERVE © 37 & 522 HA sk R HK$1,349,000 (2014: HK$2,818,000) were impaired. The credit

BZHBZEELAEREEZEHENETH

quality of the balances that are neither past due nor impaired

BEORZBFEERFE - BB L AR were assessed by management with reference to historical

THFRRATIIEHEHE -

information about counter party default rates. The net amounts
due from associates were denominated in the following

currencies:
—E-HF —E-F
2015 2014
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Hong Kong dollar 6 30

BFEHEFRRDEE

28 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

—F-IfF —F-MmF

2015 2014

BETT BT

HK$’000 HK$’000

R—A—H At 1 January 18,203 18,453
EBBREEE Currency translation differences - (250)

HeE Disposals (18,203)

W+=—A=+—~H At 31 December - 18,203
R-EBE—=FN\A-+=H ' KEFHE—F On 23 August 2013, the Group entered into a sale and

BUE=-HEINEERE  UWREBEIY
%&ﬁﬁimﬁ%% R 1E 52,800,000 %
TC o Y E AR L E RS fE A ED
%3!5//.@%5;2 PRPENR_E—RFT+ A
SeAk 0 i B UL sS4 78 #53,547,000 T B R
HE-Z—AF+-A=+—HLEFEZIE
mﬁ&u/u"

purchase agreement with an independent third party for the
disposal of the property and the leasehold land use rights in
Vietnam for a consideration of US$2,800,000. The property and
the related land use rights were classified as non-current assets
held for sale. The transaction was completed in October 2015
and a disposal gain of approximately HK$3,547,000 was
recognised to the profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2015.
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20 HENBEESEEYRIERIEITE 29 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
=h

A SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS
—T-EF —T—mF
2015 2014
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERE Cash on hand 358 413
RITIER Cash at bank 807,615 655,230
ReERALEEY Cash and cash equivalents 807,973 655,643

REIE R AR =EA 2 EHRTER Short-term bank deposits with

original maturity over three months 218,823 257,048
1,026,796 912,691

ReMREEEYREBRTFERATIE Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits were

HE=HE denominated in the following currencies:
—F-1fF L
2015 2014
BET T BETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
s Hong Kong dollar 39,065 50,080
AR Chinese renminbi 230,395 386,010
e United States dollar 743,055 450,634
B Others 14,281 25,967
1,026,796 912,691

EHBRTERZNEFHERFN XA
3.96% (—Z—PF : 501%) °

PIFHEENE B RTERAE BT
EBERFS, -

e MEEHRTTFE 712,802,000 7T( =
T —PU4E - B 526,288,000 7T ) JHRA R B
B AETEWINEBTIERE - ZZEHHN
EEERTHIEREREOESHRS
TEEEB RIS -

Woh RZE—RF+=_A=+—H ' R17
EHRBEZ (2 —NE: B
15,034,000 7T ) B 17 A B 5 — K EL 5 gl g
o BZEELEL UM ATENBE
BRI BT e 0 2 GNEE B ) o

RZE—RF+_A=+—8B &%
3,560,0007T( =& — M4 : ¥ 3,763,000
) BRBIRKBERENERREENZR
BT o
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The weighted average effective interest rate on short-term bank
deposits was 3.96% (2014: 5.01%) per annum.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

Cash and short-term bank deposits of HK$712,802,000 (2014:
HK$526,288,000) are held in China and are subject to local
exchange control regulations. These local exchange control
regulations provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the
country, other than through normal dividends.

In addition, bank balance of HK$ nil (2014: HK$15,034,000) as
at 31 December 2015 was placed with a major financial
institution in Vietnam. The remittance of these funds out of
Vietnam is subject to exchange restriction imposed by the
Vietnamese government.

As at 31 December 2015, HK$3,560,000 (2014:
HK$3,763,000) are restricted deposits held at bank as reserve
for electricity deposit.



e M HRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 fTESmMIT A 30 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
—E—-HF —E—F
2015 2014
BE =L BE afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BET T BT T BETIT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FEimH — WIEIEE I Interest rate swaps
not for hedges - 731 - 774
- 731 - 774
N-ZTE—AF+-_A=+—H ' RIHEIF= The notional principal amount of the outstanding interest rate
e HIA A 7 B E AN EE A7E 1 31,050,000 70 swap contract at 31 December 2015 was HK$31,050,000
(=—Z—pu4F : ##37,950,0007C) ° (2014: HK$37,950,000).
31 EREZEX 31 TRADE PAYABLES
AEEREMNE SREFIZEZHHZ REDNT Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables by invoice date is
PN as follows:
—E-IF —E—F
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’°000 HK$’000
0Z260H 0-60 days 590,521 684,174
61290 H 61-90 days 59,705 70,943
B0 H Over 90 days 7,054 40,000
657,280 795,117

REEENE SRR ZREBEN NG
& :

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

—E-RF —E—puE

2015 2014

BT T BT

HK$’000 HK$’000

B Hong Kong dollar 213,506 220,332
AR Chinese renminbi 29,928 37,494
e United States dollar 387,794 493,188
H Japanese yen 18,578 36,140
BT Euro 7,153 7,603
Hib Others 321 360
657,280 795,117
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32 EFFERARHEMEMSKRK 32 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
—E-HF —ET—OF
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’°000 HK$’000
PRI RBK Deposits and advances received
from customers 110,534 95,950
FETE B AR A Accrued employee benefit costs 97,136 92,685
HAith FE I8 Other tax payables 1,070 200
JEFTAE - T RFETFER Accrued freight , delivery and
storage charges 15,097 15,272
e AREXER Accrued utilities charges 1,618 1,905
R EFEHE RSB EEKILZS Deposit received for disposal of
non-current assets held for sale - 15,229
HAt Others 51,158 53,468
276,613 274,709
NEBFES SR R E A4 E NS~ BEEE A The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and other
Ty payables are denominated in the following currencies:
—E-HF —ET—OF
2015 2014
AT 5T AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
AR Chinese renminbi 106,201 104,277
B Hong Kong dollar 113,917 118,380
ETT United States dollar 55,972 51,537
¥ns o Singapore dollar 69 64
i) Others 454 451
276,613 274,709
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33 EX 33 BORROWINGS
“E-EE ZTF
2015 2014
BT T BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REOPFITER - BEE Long-term bank loan, secured 420,000 420,000
ERWIESRTER  EER Trust receipt bank loans, unsecured 363,652 402,710
RERITED - BEA Short-term bank loans, unsecured 197,292 195,053
xE ﬁEﬁZ*ﬁ MRIBEN - Portion of a mortgage loan from bank due
R—FEREE for repayment within one year 6,900 6,900
REFITZHDIRIBER - Portion of a mortgage loan from bank due
R—FREER for repayment after one year which
BEARNERBEBIKY contains a repayment on demand clause 24,150 31,050
BER Total borrowings 1,011,994 1,055,713
—2-Rf —T-MmF
2015 2014
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETRED Non-current 420,000 420,000
pink2) Current 591,994 635,713
HBE R Total borrowings 1,011,994 1,055,713
NR-E—FRF+-_A=+—H EBEZZ At 31 December 2015, the Group’s borrowings were repayable
BEBRMT : as follows:
—E-AF —ET—F
2015 2014
BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
1FR Within 1 year 591,994 635,713
15224 Between 1 and 2 years - 420,000
2E5GF Between 2 and 5 years 420,000 -
5 A+ Over 5 years - -
mEN Total borrowings 1,011,994 1,055,713
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33 EF(E)

W_ZE—RAF+_A=+—H ' HEK
31,050,000 7T (=& — U4 : #%& 37,950,000
T0) 2R B E KA R AE A5 90,615,000 7T

—ZT—PU4F : E%92,853,0007T) 2 AKEE
T AT (M5E15) ©

R-_ZE—FE+_A=+—H B
420,000,0007t( =— & — g F: B &
420,000,0007T) 2 REFIRITE FUAMN R AR S
BN H 4 & 1 ¥Talent Chain Investments

Limited &) T & #E 25 2 B0 B 3 S 30 -

R-E—RF+-_A=+—0 A&EFEZE
HEARAREDEER -

B LIRS AREC R EE TR LR
Mz & TR SR B R4 -

e
i

m%ﬂ% A2 BB RERE - HEREEEAR
EBEMRE

FERBERZEEEREAAEBERSE - A

REEDRBZERFE217% R 2B
o WERARBESRE2H -

AEBEERZREEATIIEEE

33 BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, mortgage loan of approximately
HK$31,050,000 (2014: HK$37,950,000) was secured by the
land and buildings of the Group with a carrying amount of
HK$90,615,000 (2014: HK$92,853,000) (Note 15).

As at 31 December 2015, the long-term bank loans of
HK$420,000,000 (2014: HK$420,000,000) was secured by a
share mortgage over the Group’s entire interest in Talent Chain
investments Limited, a joint venture of the Group.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s borrowings were
secured by the corporate guarantee given by the Company.

In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to comply with
certain restrictive financial covenants imposed by certain banks.

The carrying amounts of the current borrowings approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities.

The carrying amount of the non-current borrowing
approximates its fair value. The fair value is based on the cash
flow discounted using a rate based on the borrowing rate of
2.17% and is within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

—E-HF —E—F

2015 2014

BET T BEET I

HK$’000 HK$’000

s Hong Kong dollar 984,702 1,020,660
ET United States dollar 7,774 15,538
HIE Japanese yen 19,518 19,515
1,011,994 1,055,713
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33 EX(E) 33 BORROWINGS (continued)
ERRBEMRBEREMNENAT The effective annual interest rates of borrowings at the end of
the reporting periods are as follows:
—F-1fF —T-mF
2015 2014
RHRITER Long-term bank loan 2.17% 2.19%
EREMURIRTTE R Trust receipt bank loans 1.47%-1.92%  1.34%—1.93%
EERITE K Short-term bank loans 1.34%-2.01%  1.36%2.41%
BIBER Mortgage loan 0.84% 0.88%
34 B 34 SHARE CAPITAL
R EE H{E
Number of
shares Nominal value
BETIT
HK$’000
BREEESE010T 2 EBR Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
EERA Authorised:
R=Z-0N&—-—A—H- At 1 January 2014,
—E-NFE+ZA=+—AHEK 31 December 2014 and
—E-AE+=-A=+—8H 31 December 2015 700,000,000 70,000
BEIT AR R Issued and fully paid:
R-ZE—0N&E—-A—H- At 1 January 2014,
—_E-—-NME+=-BA=+—-HE 31 December 2014 and
—E-HEF+=ZA=+—H 31 December 2015 478,483,794 47,848

FA - RARABREEMHBELATGEEE -
HESBRIARRBEF LHES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 SZERERER

@)

36 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

MRETSH AN HEEEEENRESF (@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash
B EERINT ¢ generated from operations is as follows:
—E-If —T-ME
2015 2014
BET T BETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETH Operating activities
BR S HAT A Profit before income tax 642,878 670,556
AN IR Adjustments for:
BEKAFH Finance costs — net 10,335 7,920
EEEERERNE Share of profit of joint ventures (426,010) (430,320)
0¥ BERRELTE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 42,608 35,843
HELT R T AR 2 8H Amortisation on leasehold land and land
use rights 629 644
SBMIEZRERNE Unrealised gains on financial instrument 43) (123)
LEREME W Gain on disposal of an investment property - (1,963)
HETHLIESRHEE 2 a Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets (7,957) -
LENE  BEREE (s, BE (Gains)/losses on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (741) 456
YNl Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries 13,533 -
PEFENEERDEE 2 Gain on disposal of non-current assets
held for sale (3,547) -
HESREE A Impairment for available-for-sale financial
assets 1,230 -
BN AEREA Impairment for intangible assets - 13,054
PTEIE & Write-back of
— R 2 A R FUR ORERE — impairment provision on amounts
due from associates (1,366) (20)
— ERE S REMENER — trade and other payables 2,777) (4,254)
— EWE 5 R E U AR 3R — trade and other receivables (529) -
REMELLBEKE Fair value gain of investment properties (694) (1,810)
EEACEYH LB ENRE Operating cash flows before changes in
working capital 267,549 289,983
BE Inventories 11,837 665
EUE SER Trade receivables 178,829 (75,853)
BAFOE e REMEUERT Prepayments, deposits and other receivables (1,759) (21,897)
EHESER Trade payables (122,553) 9,370
JETE A R A EMERR Accruals and other payables 22,520 33,189
HEEANRS Cash generated from operations 356,423 235,457
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 ZEBEERER(E) 36 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(continued)
) EREREXRAN HEVE BER (o) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal of
REFTERERE property, plant and equipment comprise:
—ZE-HF —E-mF
2015 2014
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
R FE Net book amount 270 1,928
HEWE BEMREZ Gain/(losses) on disposal of property,
Wz, (E18) plant and equipment 741 (456)
HEWE MELREBIIE  Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 1,011 1,472
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 RRIBEEZ2HBRRERGE®HE 37 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
28 FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT
—F-1fF Lk
2015 2014
BT T BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EE ASSETS
kREBEE Non-current assets
fHEARMEE  Investments in subsidiaries 563,366 563,366
REBEE Current assets
TEMROE ~ BT e N EAM Prepayments, deposits and
& U BR FX other receivables 184 180
SRS NGIE e Amounts due from subsidiaries 387,015 385,430
RWENRREEBY Cash and cash equivalents 1,190 2,598
i 988,389 385,208
BEE Total assets 951,755 951,574
= EQUITY
BERELTEEBA Equity attributable to owners
2R of the Company
f& s Share capital 47,848 47,848
HEEE Other reserves Note (a) 675,934 675,934
REBEF Retained earnings Note (a) 60,432 60,384
o= Totalequity 784,214 784,166
afE LIABILITIES
REBBE Current liabilities
FEETE R M E A EAERR Accruals and other payables 2,532 2,424
FEHI B A B A Amounts due to subsidiaries 165,009 164,984
Y S Total liabilites 167,541 167408
amupamM Total equity and liabilities ] 951574
REBEESFE Net current assets 220,848 220,800
BEERARBERS Total assets less current
liabilities 784,214 784,166
WBRAKERZE—R"F=A=_+=H%E The statement of financial position was approved by the Board
EFEEHE THTIESRRES of Directors on 23 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:
T B TEH WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN WONG YIN MAN, ADA
FERTHAEH EE Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 PEIEE 2B MRARKEGHE 37 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
=) (,E) FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT (continued)
MsE () © ARABIREEE Note (a): Reserves movement of the Company
RAEE EBABERE BEfES REEH ko
Capital
Share redemption  Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus earnings Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-E-mE-A-A At 1 January 2014 163,025 345 522,564 43,280 719,214
FEFE Profit for the year - - - 48,205 48,205
ZE-MEERKRE Dividends paid relating
to 2014 - - - (31,101) (31,101)
W-Z2-MmE+-A=+-AH At 31 December 2014 153,025 345 522,564 60,384 736,318
EEFE Profit for the year - - - 38,327 38,327
ZE-RFERRE Dividends paid relating to 2015 - - - (38,279) (38,279)
R-E-RF+-A=1-H At 31 December 2015 153,025 345 522,564 60,432 736,366
MizE : ARRIZEHBBEAEER —NANTFEAR Note: The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
ARARFMBERBRAEREEFE L REESR between the book values of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries
AARBBEEMBEITRO ZEEME 25 - 1R acquired by the Company, and the nominal value of the Company’s
BARVERANRRZARMA RRARZEHR shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group’s reorganisation
BRATE R T ARER - in 1990. Under the Companies Act and the Bye-laws of the Company,
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to the
shareholders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 & 38 COMMITMENTS
(a) Y% BEMEREBZEARFENT : (@) Capital commitments in respect of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

—F-1fF L

2015 2014

BT T BETT

HK$’000 HK$'000

BRIABREE Contracted but not provided for 3,188 3,479

EREERETLD Authorised but not contracted for = -

3,188 3,479
b) R-ZZE—RF+-_A=+—H &% (b) As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s future aggregate
BEREZNH AT BEZBEEFTERE minimum lease payments under various non-cancellable

HEAET < ARREREFRERE

operating lease agreements in respect of rented premises

U N are analysed as follows:
—F-1fF —
2015 2014
BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FN Within one year 10,975 8,848

F_EERF (BEERME) In the second to fifth year

inclusive 16,067 -
iR hF Over five years = -
27,042 8,848

REMERREAKREAREETEF
BYEANZAS - AHLESRT
VEH2FRHBRERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 &I (&) 38 COMMITMENTS (continued)
© RZZTE—RHF+-_A=+—H K& (¢) As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s future rental
BREBEZMHIAIRECHEEFLE income receivables under various non-cancellable
HEAREK Z2HSWADHTTAOT ¢ operating leases in respect of rented premises are

analysed are as follows:

—E-AF —E-NF
2015 2014
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
—&FR Within one year 1,502 840
“EFRF(BREEEMRT) In the second to fifth year
inclusive 2,239 -
3,741 840
KEREFREASERLBEELE Operating lease payments represent rentals receivable by
WERK s HE HARBESEFY the Group for leasing its investment properties. Leases
FH1SFHEMRERE and rentals are negotiated and fixed for an average of 1.5
years.
39 BEALRS 39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
A& BB E R AE A K&E B Saop The Group was controlled by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
Investment Limited * X &2BERKLEESRE (personally and via Salop Investment Limited, a company wholly
WEREH AR REFEMRXFBERAF owned and controlled by him) and W. S. Wong & Sons
(BERREESHIZ AT EH - RZE—F Company Limited (a company controlled by the Wong’s family).
FH+-A=+—8  THEFKLECGER Saop As at 31 December 2015, Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (together
Investment Limited) & E#E ML FHR QA with Salop Investment Limited) and W. S. Wong & Sons
DRIEmER AR BB BITIRA 2 28.03% Company Limited beneficially owned 28.03% and 19.66% of
$219.66% ° the issued shares of the Company respectively.
(a) EERIEA T z#8R (a) Balances with related parties
fEURFERTEEE AR A B EIRIE The amounts due from/to associates and joint ventures
BRZEMBRRE - BEERER are set out in the consolidated statement of financial
BEE19 K 27 » position. The terms are set out in notes 19 and 27.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 BEALXRE (#)

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a) EERFE A X 24tk (&) (a) Balances with related parties (continued)
STATENRIE 518 R EMEWEER Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
7 B 13,339,000 ( = & — Y 4 : is HK$3,339,000 (2014: HK$3,339,000) being amounts
751#53,339,0007T) 45K B Wong’s Kong due from certain subsidiaries of Wong’s Kong King
King International (Holdings) Limited & International (Holdings) Limited, the director and major
FHBARIZRK  MZABZESE shareholder of which is the brother of Mr. Wong Chung
FEERRATERLEEZEAR Mat, Ben and the uncle of Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada. The
TERLLZ2ER - EsrBEER - balance is unsecured, interest free and without pre-
TET B R I 4 B TE 2 5 o determined repayment terms.
RERNECHERBEEIE ABIK Impairment loss of HK$1,242,000 (2014: HK$ nil) was
1,242,0007C( —Z— PO : JB¥EET) o recognised during the year.

(b) TR (b) Guarantee
A—E—RFE+-_A=+—8  &xQ As at 31 December 2015, the Company has provided
Al EM B R A ERYEK corporate guarantee given to the banks in respect of
2,724.567,0000 ( ZZF — P 4F : B banking facilities of approximately HK$2,724,567,000
2,239,453,0007T ) Z$R1TRLE © MR (2014: HK$2,239,453,000) granted to its subsidiaries.
TR EER -

A—TE—RE+_A=+—8 B The facilities utilized by the subsidiaries as at 31
NAE T ANREDN A BE December 2015 amounted to approximately
1,011,994,000 0 ( =& — PO 4 : B & HK$1,011,994,000 (2014: HK$1,055,713,000)
1,055,713,000 7T) °

(c) EEEE AESHM (c) Key management compensation

—E-HF —ZT P

2015 2014

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

e MoERL Salaries and allowances 15,854 13,359

TEAT Bonus 7,620 3,772
RIS AT GG E Pension costs — defined contribution

schemes 108 100

23,582 17,231
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